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| am pleased to present the annual report of Tysan Holdings limited (the
"Company”) together with ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”] for the year ended
31 March 2013. For the year under review, the Group achieved a profit
atiributable fo equity holders of the Company of HK$348 million, equivalent
fo HK$0.40/share, representing 2.6 times increase over that of the previous
year (2011/12 (restated): HK$98 million, equivalent to HK$0.11/

—ZF(LE%) 98,000,000 #HE  share] while tumnover increased by 60% to HK$3,767 million (2011/12:
REROITET)  MEXEAEMOO%ZE  HK$2,348 million).
3,767,000,0008 (= F ——/— =% :
2,348,000,000&7T) °
g2 DIVIDEND
EERRBANR_Z-—=F/N\ANBAEFIAK The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of

DEBRRAM BRI KBRS ER

HK$0.05 (2011/12: HK$0.04) per ordinary share to shareholders whose

RSOBI(ZE——/—ZF: 4. O/%TIJJ) names appear on the Company's register of members on @ August 2013. An
BE_Z——FNA=THIEARERZIRN inferim dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share was paid for the six months
‘:F‘ HRESREBBW20BIU(=ZZE——,  ended 30 September 2012 (2011/12: HK$0.015). Subject to shareholders'

ZEF158M) - FRREREBRRBSE
ReL#AER  BECRBRESEN-F
—ZFAARBHZATZA

approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or before 6 September 2013

E 3 4E1] BUSINESS REVIEW
BR™S Hong Kong Market
RZZ-—=FZE_FT-—MEFHHFE " BT Inthe fiscal year 2013-14, the government's capital spending on infrasfructure
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will reach HK$70 b||\\on. Maior infrastructure projects being undertaken or
planned include a new metro line (Shatin to Central Link) and road projects
(Central to Wan Chai Bypass, Island Eastern Corridor Link, Tuen Mun fo Chek
lap Kok Link). The Group thus expects the outlook of the foundation industry
will continue to be positive.

Foundation Piling

The turnover of the Group's foundation division increased by 31% to
HK$2,896 million for the year under review. However, due to increased
competition, rising costs and unexpected delay in some projects, the net
contribution decreased by 6% to HK$80 million as compared to HK$236
million last year. The Group's major confracts on hand include, infer alia, the
Wynn project in Cofai Macau, Hong Kong Housing Authority's project in Tuen
Mun Area 54 and Wheelock's project in Hung luen Road.
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Other Construction Related Sectors

During the year under review, turnover of the Group's electrical and
mechanical engineering division was HK$53 million but due to rising costs
and writeoffs, the division incurred a loss of about HK$3 million. The Group
expecis the division fo become breakeven in the coming year.

The machinery leasing and trading division's turnover increased from HK$23
million to HK$32 million for the year under review and managed to make a
turnaround with net contribution of over HK$ 1 million. The Group expects the
division's furnover fo continue fo increase and yield stable refums.

Disposal of Office Premises

On 7 December 2011

agreement to sell its office located at 11t

, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
h Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour
Road, Hong Kong for a consideration of HK$315 million. The sale was

of about HK$192 million was
recorded in this financial period. Such disposal improves the Group's working

completed on 31 May 2012 and a profit

capifal and strengthens the overall financial position of the Group.

PRC Market

Shanghai, Tianjin and Shenyang, the three cities where the Group's property
projects are located, continue fo rank as the highest growth cities in China.
In 2012, China's GDP grew 7.8% to over RMB51,932 billion with a per
capita GDP of RMB38,354. Shanghai recorded a GDP growth of 7.5% to
RMB2,010 billion with a per capita GDP of RMB85,000. Tianjin experienced
a GDP growth of 13.8% to RMB1,289 billion with a per capita GDP of
RMBQ1,181 while Shenyang achieved a GDP growth of 10.0% to RMB6G
billion with a per capita GDP of RMB80,532 in 2012

F£4% 2012/2013
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WEZR Property Development
FIh = E The Waterfront

REBFE  AEEELBZEEBHASR  For the year under review, the Group's residential project in Shanghai, The
fix 52 B # 38 U &5 224,000,000 7T » i1 = Waterfront, recognized sales revenue of HK$224 million as compared to
FE Y s A /62,000,000 - ERUEFR  HK$62 million in the previous year while contribution to profit was HK$ 140
140,000,000 47T - BEZF —WMEMHEBE - million. With new round of tightening policies, market sentiment is expected to
BT SRANABERRST - AWM K& remain cautious and conservative. However, the Group believes that the price
EREE B BRIBRIFIRE of the project will remain solid.
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The Riverside

The Group's residential project in Tianjin, The Riverside, comprises 6 fowers
with a fotal gross floor area (“GFA") of approximately 75,000 sgm. With
the existing property market environment, the sale performance of the project
was considered satisfactory. Handover of units commenced in the later half
of 2012 and for the year under review, revenues of HK$535 million were
recognized while contribution fo profit amounted to HK$ 199 million. With
emphasis on high quality and unique design, the Group is positive on the
sales of the remaining unis.
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Shenyang Project

The site in Shenyang is located at Huanggu District with a site area of about
41,340 sgqm and a GFA of approximately 165,000 sqm, comprising both
residential and commercial development. As planned, foundation works have
just commenced.

Property Investment and Management

The Group's investment properties in Shanghai have continued to enjoy steady
recurrent income and soﬁsfocfory occupancy rafes. Turnover of the property
investment division during the year under review was HK$25 million while
the overall valuation increased by HK$31 million. In order to achieve higher
refurns, the Group will undertake renovation works to enhance the quality of
China Garden. The renovation program will be conducted in phases and is
expected fo complete in 2015.

PROSPECTS

The global economy is on shaky ground with a small rebound in the US in
the beginning of the year but appears to have faded. With so many parts
of the world economy performing below expectations, China's economic
outlook is still relatively promising. Although the days of double-digit growth
in China are over, the new leadership's direction fo restructure the economy
fowards domestic consumption is encouraging as it will lead China to a more
susfainable growth.

The Group expects the foundation industry will confinue to be stable in the
coming year due fo commencement of piling works for major infrastructure
projects in Hong Kong (which include HK-Macau-Zhuhai bridge and MTR
Shatin Cenfral Link efc.] and casino related projects in Macau (which include
Whynn Phase 2, Venefian Parcel 3 and MGM Cotai]. However, the Group
expects increased competition and escalating costs but is prepared and
equipped fo face such challenges and market uncertainties ahead.

With a rebound in China's home prices in the first quarter of 2013, the central
govemment unveiled a fresh round of measures in March to cool the property
sector. The residential market will be suppressed in the short run but the Group
believes such measures are vital for healthy growth in the long run. The Group
believes it is well positioned in the China property market as it has projects
in different stages of complefion, an experienced management team and
sufficient cash to capture opportunities readily.
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All'in all, the Group will adopt @ prudent investiment and financing sfrategy
and will continue to strive for improvement, strengthen ifs operational efficiency

and look for opportunities o maximize the inferests of the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| am pleased fo announce and extend my warm welcome to Mr. Li Kit Chee
for joining our Board as Independent Non-executive Director. | would also like
fo express my sincere grafitude to our former Executive Director, Mr. Wong
Kay who resigned to pursue his personal goals and his resignation became
effective on 1 May 2013. | would like to take this opportunity to thank him for

his invaluable contribution fo the Company during the tenure of his office.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our
staff for their dedication, hard work and contribution especially during such
challenging period. In addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders
for their support of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

FRANCIS CHEUNG
Chairman

Hong Kong
19 June 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Francis, aged 60, is the controlling shareholder of the Group.
Mr. Cheung is the Chairman of the Board of the Company and also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He currently also acts as the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheung is primarily responsible for the
formulation of the Group's strategies, overall policy making and direction of
its business development. He has over 35 years’ experience in corporate
management. Mr. Cheung is a member of Tianjin Municipal Commitiee of The
Chinese People's Political Consuliative Conference and an Advisory Professor
of Tianjin Nankai University. He is also a member of the Board of Governors
of Hong Kong Shue Yan University and a member of the Board of Directors
of four primary schools. He is father of Mr. Cheung Harvey Jackel, Executive
Director of the Group.

Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak Victor, aged 58, joined the Group in May 1994.
Mr. Fung is the Vice Chairman & Managing Director of the Board of the
Company and also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is
primarily responsible for business development, strategic planning as well as
general and project management of the Group. Mr. Fung has over 34 years'
experience in the field of consulting engineering, consfruction management
and property development.

Mr. CHIEN David, aged 48, joined the Group in March 1997. Mr. Chien
is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chien was the founder of China
Garden and has over 22 years' experience in the property investment,
development and management field, both in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Miss KWOK Jennifer, aged 46, joined the Group in January 1997. Miss
Kwok is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily responsible
for the Group's corporate planning and development, corporate finance and
investment strategies. Miss Kwok has over 21 years” experience in the finance
field specializing in corporate finance and direct investment. She holds a
Master of Science Degree in Management from Massachusetts Insfitute of
Technology Sloan School of Management.

Mr. CHIU Chin Hung, aged 60, joined the Group in July 1994. Mr. Chiu
is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the
business development and management of the Group's foundation business.
Mr. Chiu graduated from The University of Aberdeen, Scotland and has over
35 years' experience in foundation design and construction works and is a
Fellow of The Institute of Civil Engineers and The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers as well as a Chartered Engineer. Mr. Chiu is a Council Member

of The Hong Kong Construction Association representing Tysan Foundation
Limited since 2001.
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Mr. LAU Kin Fai, aged 52, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. lau is
an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is the Regional Director in charge
of the Group's Tianjin Property Development Division in the PRC. Mr. lau is
responsible for business development and management of the Group's Tianjin
property development business. Prior fo joining the Group, he had over 24
years' experience in the field of quantity surveying and housing development
with the latter 14 years working in the Hong Kong Housing Society. Mr. Lau
is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Mr. CHEUNG Harvey Jackel, aged 35, joined the Group in June 2006.
Mr. Cheung is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also
a direcfor of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is the Regional Director
in charge of the Group's Shanghai and Shenyang Property Development
Division in the PRC. Mr. Cheung is responsible for business development and
management of the Group's Shanghai and Shenyang property development
business. He has over 12 vears” working experience in the PRC and holds
an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung is a son of Mr. Francis Cheung,
Chairman of the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FAN Chor Ho, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 71, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August 1993. Mr. Fan
currently also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee, @ member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He
was a Non-execufive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
from 3 April 2000 to 15 April 2003. He was a member of the Advisory
Committee fo the Securities and Futures Commission from 1993 to 1997 and
again serving in the same capacity since 2001 until 2007. He is holding
appointments on Govemment boards and commitiees including Chairman of
the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong from 13 September 2005 fo
12 September 2011. He was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in July 2011
and Bronze Bauhinia Star in July 2005, and was awarded with the Badge of
Honour in 1991 and was made a Justice of the Peace in 1993.

F£4% 2012/2013
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Mr. TSE Man Bun, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr. Tse currently also
acts as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Commitiee of the Company. He is presently
an independent non-executive director of HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited,
HSBC life (International) Limited, Crystal Infernational limited and China
Fishery Group Limited {listed on the Singapore Exchange limited). Mr. Tse
has over 40 years working experience in the banking industry. He joined The
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in 1968 and retired from
the bank in December 2002. During his service with HSBC, he was assigned
many key positions, including Senior Credit Manager; Managing Director,
Wayfoong Finance Llimited and Wayfoong Credit Limited; and Senior
Executive, Commercial Banking. Apart from the banking field, Mr. Tse is well
versed in the reviewing and analysis of corporate financial statements and has
an indepth understanding of the commerce and manufacturing industries.

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming George, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2007. Mr. Lung currently
also acfs as a member of the Audit Commitiee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. He is a Senior Regional Director of Manulife {Interational]
limited leading a team of over 600 insurance/financial advisers. He first
joined Manulife in 1990 and has since achieved outstanding results. Actively
involved in community services, Mr. lung was awarded one of the Ten
Qutstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1995 and was the chairman of
The Outstanding Young Persons Association in 2003 to 2004. Mr. lung was
awarded the Medal of Honour by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Furthermore, Mr. lung is a Committee Member of
the Board of Govemors of Hong Kong Shue Yan University, a Member of
the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Power Station/Lingao Nuclear Power
Station, Nuclear Safety Consultative Committee, the Founding Chairman of
Hong Kong Youth Exchange Promotion United Association and a Member of
the Commission on Youth of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr.
lung is currently a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and Justice of the Peace of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.
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Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 58, was appoinfed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2013. Mr. Li currently also
acts as a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Commitiee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company in March 2013. He holds
a Bachelor Degree of Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong.
He has over 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting and secrefarial
services and is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified
Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is a managing director of Arthur Li, Yau & lee C.P.A. limited, and also
a managing director of Cheong Yip Corporate Services Limited which is
principally engaged in corporate service related business. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Henry Group Holdings Limited and First
Credit Finance Group limited, both of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Miss MO Wai Ling, aged 49, joined the Group in February 2008. As the
Financial Controller of the Group, Miss Mo is primarily responsible for finance
and accounting matters. She has over 26 years” experience in the finance and
accounting field. Miss Mo is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. LAl Kok Wai, aged 55, joined the Group in July 1994. As a
Director of Tysan Foundation Limited, Tysan Geotechnical Limited, Tysan
Confractors (Hong Kong) Limited, Tysan Construction [Macau) limited and
Tysan Foundation (Macau) Limited, Mr. Lai is responsible for the planning,
coordinating and controlling of the technical operations and administration of
the Foundation division. He has over 32 years' experience in civil engineering,
building and foundation design and construction works and is a member of
both The Hong Kong Insfitution of Engineers (MHKIE) and The Institufion of Civil
Engineers United Kingdom (MICE). Mr. Lai also represents Tysan Foundation
Limited to sit in various Government's panels and committees. Mr. Lai is also @
Director of Proficiency Engineering Limited and Proficiency Equipment Limited.
He is also responsible for the business development and management of
machinery leasing and trading.

Miss WONG Suk Han Kitty, aged 49, joined the Group in June 2007. As
the Company Secrefary of the Group and Associate Director of Corporate
Affairs, Miss Wong is primarily responsible for company secretarial matters,
legal and investor relations matters. She has over 16 years of experience in
the corporate finance and legal fields. Miss Wong is a Solicitor qualified in
Hong Kong and has been admitted as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court in

England and Wales.
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The Company is commitied to maintaining good corporate governance and

has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code

the “Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Goveming the Listing of

Securities [the “listing Rules”] on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the
Company has fully complied with the Code save as disclosed in section (F)

below.

(A)

(B)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) oversees the management,
business, sfrategic directions and financial performance of the Company
and ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”). It has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the executive directors of the Company (*Directors’)
and senior management of the Company (*Senior Management’) who
perform their duties under the leadership of the managing director of
the Company (the “Managing Director”). At the time of delegation,
the Board gives clear directions to Executive Directors as to the matters
that must be approved by the Board before decisions can be made on
behalf of the Group. The functions reserved fo the Board and delegated
fo the Executive Directors and Senior Management are reviewed by the
Board fo ensure that such delegation remains appropriate to the needs
of the Group. The Board members have access to appropriate business
documents and information about the Group on a timely basis.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises a fotal of eleven Directors, with seven Executive
Directors, being Mr. Francis Cheung, Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, Mr.
David Chien, Miss Jennifer Kwok, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung, Mr. Lau Kin Fai
and Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee
Ming, George and Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have a wide range of business and financial experience and
represent more than one-hird of the Board, who consisfently exercise
independent judgment. The combination of skills and experience of
Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors confribute
o the effective direction of the Company.

The Company has received annual written confirmations of
independence from all the Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the
view that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
in character and judgment and that they all meet the specific
independence criferia as required by the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung is a son of Mr. Francis Cheung, chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”). Save as disclosed, the Board members
have no material financial, business, family or other material or relevant

relationship with each other.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions and
whether they are Executive Directors or Independent Non-executive
Directors are mainfained on www.tysan.com (the “Company's website”)
and www.hkexnews.hk (the “Stock Exchange's website").

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND MANAGING
DIRECTOR

There is a clear division on the roles of Chairman and the Managing
Director which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a
balanced distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Francis Cheung, the Chairman, provides leadership fo the Board
and is responsible for the formation of the Group's srategies, overall
policy making, and direction of its business development. He is
responsible for leadership and effective running of the Board and
ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and where
required, resolved by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman takes
primary responsibility for ensuring good corporate governance practices
and procedures are esfablished and ensures that appropriate sfeps
are taken to provide effective communication with shareholder(s) of the
Company (“Shareholder(s)’).

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, the Vice Chairman of the Company
and the Managing Director, is responsible for business development,
strategic planning as well as general and project management of
the Group. He is responsible for implementing the Group's strategy
fo achieve business obijectives with the assistance of other Executive
Directors and Senior Management.

Changes in information of members of the Board and Board committees
during the year ended 31 March 2013 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are set out below:-

- M. Tse Man Bun ceased fo be a director of CDSR Development
Group Limited.

— Mr. Li Kit Chee was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of each of Audit Committee, Nomination

Committee and Remuneration Commitiee of the Company with
effect from 31 March 2013.

- M. Wong Kay resigned as an Executive Director with effect from

1 May 2013.

F£4% 2012/2013
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(D)

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board meets af least four times a year af approximately quarterly
infervals and additional meefings will be held as and when required.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Board held
five meetings [save for the executive Board meefings held between
the Executive Directors during the normal course of business of the
Company). Aftendance by a Director at a meefing by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment is allowed
under the bye-laws of the Company ("Bye-laws").

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secrefary”)
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda. A notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for regular Board meetings.
Relevant information is circulated fo all Directors normally three days in
advance of the regular Board meetings.

With the assistance of Company Secretfary, the Chairman ensures that
all Direcfors are properly briefed on issues arising af Board meetings,
and that they receive in a timely manner adequate information which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable fo assist them fo make
informed decisions and discharge their duties as Direcfors. Upon
reasonable request, the Directors and Board committees will have
access o independent professional advice in appropriafe circumstances
at the Company's expense. The Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover for its Directors and the Company reviews the coverage
on an annual basis.

Meeting minutes of the Board and Board committees are recorded
in appropriate details and draft minutes are circulated fo respective
members for comments before being approved by the Board and Board
committees. All minutes are kept by the Company Secrefary, or the
secrefary of the Board committee, as the case may be, and are open
for inspection by the Direcfors.

The Company provides Direcfors with monthly management report
which contains changes and developments of the Group's business and
helps the Directors make informed decisions and discharge their duties
and responsibilities as Directors.
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The attendance of each Board member for the Board meefings and the
general meetings held during the year under review is as follows:

E ES
%55 BEAE  HAAR
e wEE 4EE

HE=R Annual Special
Board General General

Meeting Meeting Meeting
Attendance  Attendance  Attendance

HITEE Executive Directors
RIEFELELE(LE) M. Francis Cheung (Chairman) 5/5 1/1 1/1
BRERE Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor

(BILEHEEZHETE)  |Vice Chairman & Managing Director) 5/5 1/1 1/1
BB A Mr. David Chien 3/5 0/1 0/1
BEEE Miss Jennifer Kwok 5/5 1/1 1/1
HEBEE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung 5/5 1/1 1/1
EREA Mr. Wong Kay 4/5 0/1 0/1
2B s Mr. Lau Kin Fai 5/5 1/1 1/1
SREELE Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung 5/5 1/1 1/1
BUHPTEF Independent Non-executive Directors
SBEEE Mr. Fan Chor Ho 5/5 1/1 1/1
IR Mr. Tse Man Bun 5/5 1/1 1/1
EFHELE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 5/5 1/1 1/1
TR KE Mr. Li Kit Chee

(EER=—ZE—=F (appointment effective from

ZA=T—H4&%) 31 March 2013 0/0 0/0 0/0

F£4% 2012/2013
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(E) DIRECTORS CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT

the Company's expenses.

All Directors are also encouraged fo affend fraining courses relevant
on changes and developments to the Group's business and to the
legislative and regulatory environments in which the Group operates at

During the year under review, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as listed company directors. All Directors have
provided the Company with their records of the training they received

for the year. A summary of the records of their fraining is as follows:-

ESHE

Name of Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. Francis Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
(Vice Chairman & Managing Director)

Mr. David Chien

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay

M. Lau Kin Fai

Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming, George

Mr. Li Kit Chee
(appointment effective from
31 March 2013)

BIERBEAH
BRERB
Reading
Regulatory
Updates

A N N N S NN

<

B R
BEKEI,
=P
Attending
trainings/
seminars/
conference
relevant to
Directors’ duties

AN N N N

N
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for the appointment and removal of Directors. The Nomination
Committee comprising a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors, plays an important role to identify and nominate suitable
candidates for the Board's consideration as additional Directors or fo
fill in causal vacancies on the Board and making recommendations fo
the shareholders for nomination of Directors for re-election at general
meefings. According fo the Byelaws, all Direcfors newly appointed fo
fill @ casual vacancy are subject fo election af the next following general
meefing following their appointment. During the financial year ended
31 March 2013, the Company has complied with the Code save for
the following deviations.

According fo the Byelaws, onethird of the Directors shall refire from
office by rofation at each annual general meetfing, provided that
notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman and the Managing
Director shall not be subject to retirement by rofation or be taken into
account in defermining the number of Directors to refire. As continuity is
a key factor fo the successful long term implementation of business plans,
the Board believes that the roles of the Chairman and the Managing
Director provide the Group with strong and consisfent leadership and
allow effective planning and execution of longterm business strategies.
As such, the Board is of the view that the Chairman and the Managing
Director should not be subject fo refirement by rofation.

Independent Non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
ferm but are subject to retirement by rofation and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Byelaws. As such, the
Board is of the view that the Independent Non-executive Directors do
not have fo be appointed for a specific term.

The names and biographical details of the Directors, Miss Jennifer
Kwok, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung and Mr. Li Kit Chee, who will offer
themselves for election or re-election af the next annual general meeting
are included in the circular fo Shareholders containing the nofice of the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

F£4% 2012/2013
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(C)

Pursuant fo Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.11 (the "Rules”) of the listing Rules,
the Company is required to appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the Board by 31 December 2012.
Similar to other listed companies, the Board had also considered a
reduction of its size so as to comply with the Rules. The Company
announced on 21 December 2012 that it would comply with the Rules
on or before 31 March 2013. At a meeting held on 25 March 2013,
the Nomination Committee recommended that Mr. Li Kit Chee ("Mr.
li") be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and also
as a member of each of the Company's Audit Commitiee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee with effect from 31 March
2013 (the "Appointment”). At the meefing of the Board held on 26
March 2013, Mr. li was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and also as a member of each of the Company’s Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee with effect
from 31 March 2013. Defails of Mr. Li's profile and appointment have
been set out in an announcement of the Company dated 26 March
2013.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

Every Director is required to know his/her responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Group,
and should act in good faith, exercise due diligence and act in the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders. On appoiniment, new
Direcfors will receive a comprehensive, formal induction on the Group's
business and his/her responsibilities as a Director.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securifies
transactions. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors'
securities fransactions for the year under review.

The Board would review regularly the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing them.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established its Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was first established in 1999. lts terms of reference
1 April 2012

and they have been posted on the Company’s website and the Stock

were revised with reference to the Code effective on

Exchange's website.

The Audit Commitiee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group,
reviewing the Group's financial information, compliance and providing

advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Fan Chor Ho who is an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three other members,
namely Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. i
Kit Chee, who are Independent Non-executive Directors. Each member
of the Audit Committee possesses in-depth experience in his own
profession. Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Li Kit Chee
possess appropriate accounting or relevant financial management
expertise and meet the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is the secrefary of the Audit Commitiee.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Audit Committee
held three meefings. The attendance of each commitiee member is as

follows:-
Independent Non-executive Directors Attendance
M:r. Fan Chor Ho

(Chairman of the Audlit Committee) 3/3
Mr. Tse Man Bun 3/3
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 2/3
Mr. Li Kit Chee [appointment effective from

31 March 2013) 0/0

F£4% 2012/2013
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During the year, the Audit Commitiee has reviewed the Group's inferim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2012 and final results for
the financial year ended 31 March 2013, and reviewed and discussed
with the external auditors over the financial reporting of the Group.
The Audit Committee reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with
the management in relation o audifing, system of infernal control, and
financial reporting matters. The Audit Commitiee has also reviewed the
connected transaction/related party fransactions enfered info by the
Group during the year, made recommendation fo the Board on the re-
appoiniment of the external auditors and reviewed and approved the

remuneration of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was esfablished in 2005. lts terms of
reference were revised with reference to the Code effective on 1 April
2012 and they have been posted on the Company's website and the
Stock Exchange's website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and members of the Senior Management. It is the Group's
policy fo provide remuneration packages af fair market value in order
fo affract and refain high quality staff. No Directors or any of his/her
associates, is involved in defermining his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Tse Man Bun
who is an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three other
members, namely, Mr. Francis Cheung who is an Executive Director
and also the Chairman, Mr. Fan Chor Ho and Mr. Li Kit Chee who
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition of the
Remuneration Commitiee complies with the requirements of chairmanship
and independence of the Listing Rules.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings and the aftendance of each committee

member is as follows:-

Attendance

Directors
M. Tse Man Bun

(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Direciors
M. Francis Cheung 2/2
Mr. Fan Chor Ho 2/2
Mr. Li Kit Chee [appointment effective from

31 March 2013) 0/0

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has made
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
and discretionary bonuses of the Executive Directors and Senior
Management for the Board's consideration. Such packages include
benefits in kind, pension rights (or its equivalent, where appropriate) and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, where appropriate. The
Remuneration Commitiee has also made recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration of Independent Non-executive Directors including
the remuneration of a newly appointed Independent Non-executive
Director, Mr. Li Kit Chee.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the members of the Senior Management by band for
the year ended 31 March 2013 is as follows: -

BEAH

Number of

employees

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 ]
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 ]
4

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
March 2013 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements of the
Company.
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EBEZSE Nomination Committee
REZEGN_T—_—F=A-1+NH The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012. lts
PRI - EBESEE2EZN _T——FN terms of reference were adopted with reference to the Code effective on
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1 April 2012 and they have been posted on the Company's website
and the Stock Exchange's website. During the year, Mr. Li Kit Chee was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Direcfor and a member
of each of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Commitiee of the Company effective from 31 March 2013

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board fo complement the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and making recommendations fo the Board on the appointment and re-

appointment of Directors as well as succession planning for Direcfors to
the Board.

The Nomination Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Francis Cheung
who is an Executive Director and also the Chairman, comprises four
other members, namely, Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. Lung

Chee Ming, George, and Mr. Li Kit Chee who are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Attendance

EZE Directors
RIEZESE Mr. Francis Cheung

(HEEZE2FfE) (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 2/2
BUINTEF Independent Non-executive Directors
SefERAE Mr. Fan Chor Ho 2/2
XMW L Mr. Tse Man Bun 2/2
EFARLE Mr. Lung Chee Ming, Ceorge 2/2
TR EE(AZE—=F Mr. Li Kit Chee [appoiniment effective

—A=t—HBEZT) from 31 March 2013) 0/0

FR - RELZECHEEBUINTE
BRI RBERE - YRR EE

MIFRITERNE LHRRIAEBLIE
‘%ﬁ o
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During the year, the Nomination Committee has conducted an annual
review of the independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
and confirmed that all the Independent Non-executive Directors satisfied
the independence criferia as set out in the Listing Rules.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the financial
statements of the Company are sef out in the “Report of the Independent
Auditors” on pages 41 and 42.

Details of the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditors, Erst &
Young, during the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows:

FET

HK$ 000

Auditing services 2,587
Non-auditing services

Taxation services 228

Others 239

3,054

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and the Board policy and procedures
are followed. The Company Secrefary is primarily responsible for
advising the Board through the Chairman on governance maiters and
facilitating induction and professional development of Directors. The
Board will approve the selection and appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary who reports o the Chairman and/or the Directors.
All Directors have access fo the advice and services of the Company
Secrefary to ensure that the Board procedures, and all applicable law,
rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secrefary, Miss
Wong Suk Han Kitty, an employee of the Group, has duly complied
with the relevant training requirement under the Listing Rules for the
financial year ended 31 March 2013.
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(K)

(L)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility to ensure that the Group maintains
sound and effective controls fo safeguard its assets and the investments
of the Shareholders. The Board and the Audit Committee conducted
annual review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group covering the financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. During the annual review, the Board and
the Audit Commitiee have considered the adequacy of resources, sfaff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budgets of
the Group's accounting and financial reporting function. Based on the
assessment made by the senior management of the Group, the Board
and the Audit Committee consider that the Group's infernal control
systems are effective and adequate for its present requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board esfablished the “Corporate Governance Policy” on 28
March 2012. The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the terms of reference below:-

(1) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations fo the Board;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

(3] fo review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4] to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees of the Group; and

(5] to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code set out in compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report fo be issued by

the Company.
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(M) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company mainfains a high level of transparency in communicating

with Shareholders. In order to mainfain an on-going dialogue with

Shareholders and institufional investors of the Company, the Company
established a Shareholders” Communication Policy on 28 March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure effective and timely

dissemination of information to Shareholders and encourage their

parficipation at general meefings of the Company. The Shareholders’

Communication Policy is set out below:-

(1)

2)

(3

(4)

(5

Shareholders may refer to information disclosed publicly or
send their enquiries to the Company's registered office or its
principal place of business for the time being, for the attention
of the Company Secrefary. For enquiries on their shareholdings,
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong Branch Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited.

Shareholders may access the Company's information from its
annual reporfs, inferim reports, announcements, circulars and
nofices of meetings. These information and documents are
available on the Company's website and published on the Stock
Exchange's website. The annual reports, inferim reports, circulars,
and notices of general meetings (where appropriate, with proxy
form) of the Company are also despatched fo Shareholders.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting and general meefings of the Company. Shareholders
may also express their views, discuss the progress of the
Company and understand the operations of the Company through
the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company will review this Policy regularly fo ensure ifs
effectiveness.

Enquiries and questions on the procedures for convening or
putting forward proposals may be put to the Board by contacting
either the Company Secrefary through the Company's general
line at (852) 2882 3632, email at info@fysan.com, directly
by questions at an annual general meefing or special general
meeting of the Company or by post to the Company's registered
office or its principal place of business for the fime being.
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(N)

The Company has ensured that each substantially separate issue will be
dealt with at general meetings by way of a separate resolution.

Shareholders are informed of the procedure and their rights fo demand
a poll. The Company will ensure compliance with the requirements
about voting by poll contained in the listing Rules and the Bye-laws.
The procedures for voting by poll are set out in the Company's circular
relating fo the general meeting and will be explained during the meeting
before voting on the resolutions.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Since the Shareholders may convene a special general meefing and
make any proposals such as propose a person other than an exisfing
Director for election as a Director at such meeting, the detailed
procedures of convening a special general meeting and making any
proposals are set out in a document entitled “Shareholders' rights to put
forward a proposal at a general meeting” which has been published in
the Company's website and sef out below:-

(1) According to Byelaw 58 of the Byelaws, a Shareholder holding
not less than onetenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting af general meefings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, fo require a special general meeting
("SGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction or any
business specified in such requisition.

(2)  The written request must state the objects of the meetfing, signed
by the Shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those
requisitionists “Requisitionists”).

(3] The request by the Requisitionists will be verified with the
Company's Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the
request by the Requisitionists is proper and in order, the Company
Secrefary will request the Board to convene an SGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
in compliance with the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange fo all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request by the
Requisitionists has been verified as not in order, the Requisitionists
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an SGM will
not be convened as requested.
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(4)

(5)

(6]

I within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails fo
proceed fo convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may convene the meefing themselves in accordance with Section

74(3) of the Companies Act 1981

from time to time.

of Bermuda, as amended

If o Shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at an SGM
("Proposals”), he/she can deposit a written nofice to that effect
at the principal place of business or the office of the Company's
branch share registrar, for the aftention of the Company Secretary.

The request by the Requisitionists will be verified as stated above.

The notice period to be given fo all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of a proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an SGM varies according fo the nature of the
proposal as follows:-

- the longer of 14 clear days’ and 10 business days' nofice
in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution
of the Company; and

- 21 clear days' nofice in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company.

Whether a proposal will be put to a general meeting will be
decided by the Board in its discrefion, unless the proposal put
forward by a Shareholder is (i} pursuant fo a requisition by a
Shareholder to convene an SGM or {ii] forms part of ordinary
business fo be considered at an annual general meetfing as
described in Byedaw 61(1] of the Bye-laws.
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(7) BHEREZRELNERAANEBR (7)  Enquiries may be put fo the Board by contacting either the
BB AR D A H) B4R (852) 2882 Company Secretary through our general line at (852) 2882
632G AR EIME - BEE 3632, e-mail at info@tysan.com, directly by questions at an
R ZE info@lysan.com ~ ERRIBE annual general meefing or SGM or by post to the registered
REYRREFRIAE FHERL office of the Company or head office and the principal place of
RBXEFERARNTMEE business of the Company.

BRARANBIRERERM
Eimigd o
(O) BEEME (O) INVESTOR RELATIONS
AARERXHENBERDTMBIEK A copy of the constitutional documents of the Company has been
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ o FRN - ARBZEREXH published at the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.
WEEET L - During the year, there was no change fo the Company’s consitutional
documents.

28 Annual Report 2012/2013
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The direcfors of the Company (“Director(s)] herein present their report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal acfivity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associates are set out in
nofes 18 and 19 fo the financial statements, respectively.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
aclivities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the sfate of affairs
of the Company and of the Group af that date are set out in the financial
stafements on pages 43 to 168.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share of the Company
[“Share”] was paid on 4 January 2013. The Direcfors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per Share in respect of the year to
shareholders on the register of members of the Company on 9 August 2013.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table summarises the consolidated results, assets, liabilities
and non-controlling inferests of the Group for the five years ended 31 March
2013, as extracted from the published audited financial statements. The
amounts for each year in the five year financial summary have been adjusted
for the effects of the retrospective changes in the accounting policy affecting
deferred tax on investment properties, as defailed in note 2.2 fo the financial
statements. The summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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BB ERMEE) SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)

8-z "T-f =% CZET-TF _TTNF
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
FiEr AT FET FET AT
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(#Z5)) (#Z5)) (#Z3)) (#Z7))

(Restated) [Restated) (Restated) [Restated)

ARREBRBFREEER  Profit atributable 1o ordinary

equity holders of the Company 348,479 07,953 373,854 272,216 346,576
BEE Total assefs 5,073,547 4,130,523 4,131,563 4,835,854 3,626,172
eak Total lidbilites 2703578 2093376 2201044 2550147 1,601,581
ARAERRIRREGER  Eouiy atibutable o ordinary

equily holders of the Company 2,338,559 2,015,936 1,900,322 1,474,833 1,210,977
SRR R A Norrconirolling interess 31,410 21,211 30,197 810,874 723,614

5073547 4130523 4131563 4835854 3,626,172

Y% - HEERER1E PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AEBEYE  BRRBERAFEARNLE  Delails of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the
BRI ISR 14 - year are set out in note 14 o the financial statements.

REYE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AEBREMENTFEN 2 EEFEEEH  Defails of movements in the Group's investment properties during the year are

RMBHREMT S - AEBEZIREMERI  sef outin note 15 fo the financial statements. Further particulars of the Group's

SRR E—THBEARFRE 1707 - investment properties af the end of the reporting period are sef out on page
170 of the annual report.

BRPYIE PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

AEEZERMEFBHNU B HREMT  Delails of the Group's properties under development are set out in note 16 to
16 RFHE170E » the financial statements and on page 170 of the annual report.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the Group's properies held for sale are sef out in note 22 fo the
financial statements and on page 169 of the annual report.

STATUS OF PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF FOUNDATION
BUSINESS

Pursuant fo the conditional sale and purchase agreement dated 12 November
2012 and supplemental agreement dated 21 December 2012 (“Sale and
Purchase Agreement’) entered into between the Company and Fortunate
Pool Limited (“Fortunate Pool”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Fung Chiu
Chak, Victor ["Mr. Fung”), an Executive Director, the Company will sell 40%
interest in Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited [the “Proposed Disposal’) to
Mr. Fung. By reasons of the legal proceedings referred to in note 30 fo the
financial statements, if the Sale and Purchase Agreement does not become
unconditional by 30 June 2013, absent any further agreement between
the parties, the Sale and Purchase Agreement will lapse and the Proposed
Disposal will not proceed. The deposit of HK$6,000,000 will be refunded to

Fortunate Pool in full without inferest.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Defails of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during
the year are sef out in notes 34 and 35 fo the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company fo offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 36 fo the financial statements and in the
consolidated sfatement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, amounted to HK$175,376,000, of which HK$43,633,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of HK$560,322,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales fo the Group's five largest customers accounted
for 42% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 17%. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 33% of the fofal purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which,
fo the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital] had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers.

DIRECTORS

The Direcfors during the year were:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Francis Cheung

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
Mr. David Chien

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay

M:r. Lau Kin Fai

Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho
Mr. Tse Man Bun
Mr. lung Chee Ming, George

Mr. Li Kit Chee (Appointment effective from
31 March 2013

Subsequent fo the end of the reporting period, Mr. Wong Kay's resignation as
an execufive director of the Company became effective on 1 May 2013.
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DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

In accordance with the Company's Byelaws, Miss Jennifer Kwok, Mr. Chiu
Chin Hung and Mr. Li Kit Chee will refire and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr.
Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. Li Kit
Chee and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical defails of the Directors and the Senior Management of the Group

are sef out on pages 8 to 11 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meefing has a service confract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the Sale and Purchase Agreement, further information of which are
disclosed in note 30 of the financial statements, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any confract of significance fo the
business of the Company and ifs subsidiaries fo which the Company or any of

its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At the end of the reporting period, the inferests and long positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company or ifs associated corporations [within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant fo
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified fo the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant fo
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the
"Model Code"), were as follows:
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EERFTETHRAERKRMKERERD DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG

ZERREFR(E) POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)
) RBROZEFE: (i)  Long positions in Shares:

]

BRTRA

R

BERARERIEE Percentage of

Number of Shares held and nature of interest the Company's

fBA 27 Aty @it issued share

ESfS Name of directors Personal ~ Corporate Other Total capital

RRELE Mr. Francis Cheung 43,607,865 256,325,000  54,247200@ 354,180,065 40.59

BEREE Mr. Fung Chiu Chok, Vicior 74,867 600 = - 74,867,600 8.58

274y Mr. David Chien 101,021,020 - — 101,021,020 11.58

HHE/ME Miss Jennifer Kwok 20,000,000 = — 20,000,000 2.29

BEBLE Mr. Chiv Chin Hung 7,500,000 = - 7.500,000 0.86

it Mr. Wong Kay 165,000 - - 165,000 0.02

File) - bt Mr. La Kin Fai 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.14

REERE Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung 878,000 = = 878,000 0.10

A RE Mr. Tse Man Bun 442,000 - - 442,000 0.05

BifaE - Notes:

1. Power Link Investments Limited 1. 171,237,000 Shares were held by Power Link Invesiments Limited and
#76171,237 000 AR 1 K long Billon 85,088,000 Shares were held by Long Billion International Limited. Both
International Limited 5 % 85,088,000 of these companies are controlled by Mr. Francis Cheung.

MRy o ZE R RRARL S
#l o

2. ZERMBRREELRAMAZE 2. Such Shares were held by a discretionary trust, the founder of

RIEREATRA - which is Mr. Francis Cheung.
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ZREBRIFR(E)

(i)

RAA BB EER D 2R (i)  Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company:
ity
ERTRA

BEfE

Name of directors

BEELE
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor

S/ ME

Miss Jennifer Kwok

BREL
Mr. Wong Kay

REERE
Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung

B aE
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

REEEER

Name of associated corporations

FERETIRARLA

Tysan Building Construction
Company limited

FAIERBERAA

Tysan Engineering Company Limited

FRESERAT

Tysan Trading Company Limited

ZABHERAA
Tysan Trading Company Limited

FAIERBERAA

Tysan Engineering Company Limited

RARETIRARAF

Tysan Building Construction
Company limited

Note:

1. ZERABRETIBRERATRHESE 1.
B AA O0%  MRTELLEH
& 40% 2 7~ 8 Bl Victor Create Limited

BE -

FREERRIRERNEE
Number of ordinary
shares held and
nature of inferest
{EPN A @3t

Personal Corporate Tofal

5,202,000 5,202,000

800 - 800
26 - 26

24 - 24
2,200 - 2,200

- 5,202,000M 5,202,000

These shares of Tysan Building Construction Company Limited were held
by Victor Create limited, a company which was owned as to 60% by

Aot
Percentage of
the associated
corporation’s
issued

share capital

5]

26

24

22

5]

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, and 40% by Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

(iii) Long positions in share options of the Company:

ERERHECBREHE
EEME Number of options directly

Name of Director beneficially owned

Mr. lau Kin Fai 2,000,000

In addition to the above, a Director has non-beneficial personal equity interests
in a subsidiary held for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of
complying with the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had registered an inferest or short position
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of ifs
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant fo the Model Code.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors” and Chief Executive's
Interests and long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and
in the section “Share Option Schemes” below, at no time during the year
were rights fo acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses
or minor children or the chief executive or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries a party fo any
arrangement fo enable the Direcfors fo acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing

incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute fo the success

of the Group's operations. On 8 August 2012, the Company adopted a new

share opfion scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the scheme adopted on 28
August 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) was ferminated on the same day. Further
details of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme are disclosed in note 35 to

the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements of share options (granted under the

Old Scheme) outstanding during the year:

BiRERE

Number of share opfions
R
TE-zE
R =f
N FATE SREE EARN Z1-R
BA-B Granted Erercised Bxpired Lapsed At
AT April during during during duing 31 Morch
012 the year the year the year the year 013
2,000,000 - r - - 2000000
2,000,000 - - - = 2,000000

BhEz
RER
Date of

gt of
share opfions

E-3F
MATER!
179:2010*

EhEz
Bt
Bz Brercise
fiRER price
Beercise perod of shore
of share opfions opfions**
kR
HKS per share
2 146
MAtERE
5k
MAtRRY
1792010
0 1692013*
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

Notes fo the table of share options outstanding during the year:

* The grantee is allowed to exercise up to 33.33% of share options granted

from the date of grant up fo and including 16 September 2011. Thereafter,
the percentage of the share options which may be exercised by the grantee
is increased fo 66.67% for the period from 17 September 2011 up to and
including 16 September 2012, and further to 100% for the period from 17
September 2012 up fo and including 16 September 2013.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

The options offered on 17 September 2010 were accepted by the offeree
concerned on 22 September 2010.

Notwithstanding the adoption of the New Scheme and fermination of the
Old Scheme, the share options granted under the Old Scheme and remained

outstanding during the period, shall remain exercisable pursuant to the rules of
the Old Scheme.

From 8 August 2012, the date of adoption of the New Scheme, to 31 March
2013, no share options were granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there
is no outstanding share option under the New Scheme.

Save for the above, af no time during the year ended 31 March 2013
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse
or minor children, or chief executives or were any such rights exercised
by them, or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any
arrangement fo enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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FERRRRD RABBER G < R SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

RB|ERR - BARFRBELZRPEEDIE At the end of the reporting period, the following interests of more than 5%

33 GERFEZMRERCTHEIFARRRIEE  of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of
TTRAS 5% A E 2 AT inferests required to be kept by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the
SFO:
REIR 2412 long positions in Shares:
HAREE BT

2] BRABEDL
B2l Percentage of
Number of  the Company’s

Shares issued
= Name held share capital
Power Link Investments Limited ! Power Link Investments Limited ! 171,237,000 19.6
Eastern Clory Development Limited 12 Eastern Clory Development Limited 12 256,325,000 29.4
Goldcrest Enterprises Limited @ Goldcrest Enterprises Limited @ 256,325,000 29.4
Bofield Holdings Limited Bofield Holdings Limited 256,325,000 29.4
Long Billion International Limited ! Long Billion International Limited " 85,088,000 9.8
BT - Notes:

(1) Lk idiPower Link Investments limited long (1) The above interests of Power Link Investments limited and long Billion
Billion International Limited Z #EZ IR AR £ X International Limited have also been disclosed as corporate interests of Mr.
[EERTETBRABRKMD REERG Z Francis Cheung in the section headed “Directors” and Chief Executive's Inferests
BaRITR |- BEREELE QT and long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above.

G il

(2)  EEALEBRK SR Power Link Investments (2] These parties were deemed fo have interests in the 256,325,000 Shares by

limited J Long Billion International Limited 2 % virtue of their equity interests in Power Link Invesiments Limited and long Billion
AAER R B 256,325,000 RIRAFHEAR International Limited.
e e

BALGESN RZE—=%F=A=+—H #  Apar from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2013, no person, other than the
BAT(IXEERTETHAERRM R Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out
B 2 S R F R | —EhFmliiER 2 AAR  in the section headed “Directors’” and Chief Executive's Inferests and Long
EENTETHAEBRINEZLZERBARRQRT  Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an inferest
WD SRR BRI E S RIS EHISE  or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
336 T ARRER 2 R SIAR required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

£ 2012/2013 39



[ )
.'H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

# 3¢ JJ 3 5 REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RIZ ERBISE 13.21 R 2IKE

BIE EAARME 321 R BRERT
W TR AR R — IR B S e it

BEEEAARERRREITEECRH -
BRERARBRARRETE2ENE AR HA
ROREMEBER  BER T —FTF=
BZt+HWBR-_Z——FNANBHIRA
£7300,000,0007% 7t % 500,000,000 7T
A2
AR R RS AT B RIE T (ER
HESEE)AHEED 30% 2 AN R RHE R

ZEFHERRET L ZREWZ

S QB HHERL -

BEARAFSAFREMRBEESMA 1
ABEEHY ARREHEHTRARD

25% IR RRALHEE -

R EUEm

KEBIMEBAERSE  BHER
RABZEENRFER - BREHKE R ik

RBFAGLIEZR -

REBR®

R
Y

it

&8
“Z-ZFRATNA

40 Annual Report 2012/2013

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect of one of the
Company's loan agreements, which confain covenants requiring performance
obligations of the controlling shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to facility
agreements enfered info by the Company and wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company with a syndicate of banks and financial insfitutions on 24
February 2010 and 8 August 2012 for five-year term loan facilities of up
to HK$300,000,000 and HK$500,000,000, respectively, a termination
event would arise if Mr. Francis Cheung, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, ceased to own and confrol either directly or indirectly in aggregate
at least 30% of the shareholdings and voting rights in the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Direcfors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share
capifal was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Emst & Young refire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

FRANCIS CHEUNG
Chairman

Hong Kong
19 June 2013
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To the shareholders of Tysan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tysan Holdings
Limited (the "Company”] and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group’| sef
ouf on pages 43 to 168, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as af 31 March 2013, and the consolidated
income sfatement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated sfatement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial stafements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors defermine is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely fo you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
fo any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal confrol relevant fo the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair view in order fo
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecfiveness of the entfity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriafe to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

19 June 2013
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554 # 38 & CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended 31 March 2013 B#E-Z—=F=A=+—HI-FE

Wit
Notes

REVENUE 5
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income and gains 5
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Changes in fair value of

investment properties 15
Other expenses, nef
Finance costs 6
Share of profits of associates
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7
Income fax expense 10
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Attributable fo:

Ordinary equity holders

of the Company 11

Non-controlling interests
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY 13

Basic

Diluted

ERgMBERARAD

—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$ 000
(AZE5))
(Restated))
3,767,279 2,348,342
(3,326,250) (2,132,623)
441,029 215,719
215,844 31,495
(27,023) (19.715)
(61,092) [55,931)
30,702 28,800
(32,29¢) (27,850)
(16,331) (8,813)
6,402 4,756
557,235 168,461
(195,131) [79,621)
362,104 88,840
348,479 97,953
13,625 (9,113)
362,104 88,840

HK39.93 cents 34l

HK11.23 cents A&l

HK39.93 cents 71l

HK11.23 cents 711l

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

F£4% 2012/2013
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%‘: ﬁ 2 i W A ié CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 March 2013 HEZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

—B-ZF ZE——F
2013 2012
FHET TIET
HK$'000 HK$000
(45 E3)
(Restated))
REREGF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 362,104 88,840
Hih 2 HEKH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEBINEEELE R ER Exchange difference on translation
of foreign operations 27,778 64,049
FREMSERE - NRHE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 27,778 64,049
FRZEHKZEHE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 389,882 152,889
THIRIEREMS Attributable fo:
AREEBRAR Ordinary equity holders of the Company 375,689 161,080
FEE R A R A Non-controlling inferests 14,193 (8,191)
389,882 152,889

Annual Report 2012/2013
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ERgMBERARAD

8 W% R B & CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2013 —F—=#=f=+—A
#iE  —B-ZF T "—T——F
=ZA=t—-H =ZA=+—H MA—H
Notes 31 March 31 March 1 April
2013 2012 2011
FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(AZEZ) (AZE35))
(Restated) (Restated)
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ER = INE Property, plant and equipment 14 434,372 446,323 305,823
wEME Investment properties 15 487,878 455,590 411,464
BRAYE Properties under development 16 843,946 846,256 275,574
EANEEA Deposits paid 17 3,909 9,427 388,037
N Interests in associates 19 47,860 40,978 30,348
HnEE Other assets 1,230 1,120 1,090
EXERIBEE Deferred tax assets 33 85,501 99,980 100,146
BIERBEE Total non-current assets 1,904,696 1,899.674 1,512,482
EEE CURRENT ASSETS
BRPYE Properties under development 16 187,880 401,499 281,762
BATEFABRZRE Investments ot fair value
through profit or loss 20 272,373 3,282 122,933
FE Inventories 21 15,164 21,388 11,624
FAEMEE 2ME Properties held for sale 22 720,600 466,250 439,569
BEFEBEHNIRIRRK Amounts due from customers
for contract works 23 99,643 147, 416 88,407
FEWE Z RN Trade receivables 24 735,062 430,072 454,734
Hfth U OB - Other receivables, prepayments
BNFER and deposits 25 50,232 62,576 48,348
TTHEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 26 — 110 87
TREHIE Tax prepaid 9,238 13,777 5,320
TEHER Time deposits 27 529,582 208,248 /88,527
XRHRE Restricted cash 27 60,207 79,621 56,286
ReRIBITHER Cash and bank balances 27 488,870 275,816 321,484
3,168,851 2,110,055 2,619,081
DEEGHEZIEREBDEE  Noncurrent asset classified as
held for sale 28 - 120,794 =
BREBEE Total current assets 3,168,851 2,230,849 2,619,081

F£4% 2012/2013
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548 W% R B # CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

RBAE

e B B K e AT UR

HitENRR - 2G &
R IRWER

ITHEERMTR

REPEBENTIZZFA

BWETE
MERITEE
FERI IR

BRBAEE
REEEFE
REEFRBEE

FRBEME
P RRITEE
TEERTA
KE—RBE AR ZER
EEHBERE

BIERBAE
BEFE

i
NI
f s
BRI

il

IR AR R

Y
MBEm

b )2
FUNG CHIU CHAK, VICTOR
X

Director

mreE == T ZT—F
=A=+—-8B ZA=1+—H MA—H
Nofes 31 March 31 March 1 April
2013 2012 2011
FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(#ZE3) (#EZ)
(Restated) (Restated)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables and accruals 29 638,467 485,880 480,959
Other payables, deposits received
and receipfs in advance 30 25,608 45,094 163,652
Derivative financial instruments 26 — 140 26
Amounts due to customers
for contract works 23 528,161 184,099 224, 428
Deposits received 31 140,897 326,713 173,482
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 32 109,786 231,452 128,382
Tax payable 289,164 207,995 473,502
Total current liabilities 1,732,083 1,482,273 1,644,431
NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,436,768 748,576 Q74,650
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,341,464 2,648,250 2,487,132
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Inferestbearing bank borrowings 32 726,042 366,826 332,332
Derivative financial instruments 26 8,205 11,006 5,821
Loan from an associate 19(b) 24,560 24, 560 24,560
Deferred tax liabilities 33 212,688 208,711 193,900
Total non-current liabilities 971,495 611,103 556,613
Net assefs 2,369,969 2,037,147 1,930,519
EQUITY
Equity atfributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company
Issued capifal 34 87,266 87,266 87,011
Reserves 36(a) 2,251,293 1,928,670 1,813,311
2,338,559 2015936 1,900,322
Non-controlling inferess 31,410 21,211 30,197
Total equity 2,369,969 2,037,147 1,930,519
FPE
JENNIFER KWOK
X
Director

Annual Report 2012/2013
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554 B35 % B #& CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 March 2013 BE-Z—=6=A=1+—HIFE

ARAERRRREA IR
Aitutcble fo orcary equi holdersof e Company

B EhE Ei R

B3 iRE 1 L B
e Shore $oo  EEEE  Bdoge  REEH Nov  E&
i kswed  premim opion  Somoy  fuchalion  Peoined & conloling Toi
Notes pid accourt 18sene feserves 1esene profs Toil ineresls equiy

tér  TEr TEr TEr TEn TEn Tt TEr T
w00 RSO0 HKSO00 SO SO0 A0 MO HSOD SO

(I 36lal)
[nole 361a]|
RZR-—FMmA-A A 1 Aoil 2011
eSS s previously reporied 701 357630 1,144 5000 154446 1,0903957 1899218 0197 1929415
ERiGE Wt Efectof changes n accounting polcy = = = = = 1104 1104 = 1104
L] s ested g7011 557630 114 500 15446 1095041 1900322 30097 1930519
ERiH/ (B8)(EE5) Prfos| or e yeor fos esaed) - - - - - % 9798 PNy 88840
EREREENE: Oher compiehensie ncome for e year
BEEaER: Bichonge diference on fnsloon
JEAER offoreign operatons = = = = 63127 - 0 022 600
EmiENs/ (FR48 Tolol comprehensie incore/fexpense]
forthe yeor - - - - 03127 97933 161,080 6191 152,889
S ARERERRS Dividends paid fonoconfoling meress - - - = = = = (793) (793)
ke Bercise ofshare opfons 34,35 255 2692 83) = = = 201 = 2091
ISR B ER Equiyseted shore oplon arongemerts a - i = = = 4 = 4
Z5—ECERREAZRERE 2011 fnd diidend decored ond poid 12 = = = = - 8o (34800) - 3489
“E-CERRAERE 2012 infrim dividend poid 12 . - = = = (130000 (1309 - (13,090
HZF-2FZAZH-AEE5) A3 Moch 2012 os esled] 87206 560,322 720500t 27573 L5018 201593 121 2087147

F£% 2012/2013 47



-'H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

48

5% A WE 22 % B) 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2013 BE-ZT—=6=A=1+—HIFE

R=Z-Z£mA-A
IR
SilREY e

LEY]
R
EMEGEEAE:
heBREEL
(EjizE

e
HE-FHBLREAEE
REFERBGERRS
B2 B

“BFEERRENZAERE

“3-ERAZEES
i

o ZERBRARERGEARUBHRARES ¢
f#12,251,293,000F (=T —=

At T Apil 2012
s previousy repored
Fflsct of chonges n accounting poliy

As restoed
Prof for e year

Oher compighensive ncome for e year

Bxchonge dference on finslaon
of foreign operaions

Tofol comprehensive income for e year
Poroldsposal of st n o subsidary
Diidends paid fo norconfling reres's
Eaytysefed shore oplon arongemenis

2012final dividend declored ond peid

2013 irerim dhidend poid

At31 March 2013

&71]) : 1,928,670,00037T) °

Annual Report 2012/2013

F(

ROTEERRRELTIIEE
Afributoble fo ordinery equit holders of e Company

B BRE B R

BB EER fife EIE g
i Shore Soe  EERE  Dchonge  REER Non
i bsed  premium opfon Sty fuctafion  Reloined Bt confoling Tokl
Noes copiel occot reseneresenes  resene profi Tl iferests equiy
&t fEr TEr TEn T TEr TET FEL TEr
MO0 HESO0 HKSO00 HKSO0D AKSODD HKSODO KRS0 HKSOOD RSO0

(3360
[note 36/a]]

7266 560322 Y $00 27573 1143604 2014507 AT 2035738
= = = = = 1,409 1,409 - 1,409
87,266 560,322 mn 5050 217573 1145013 2,015,936 nnr 2057047
= = = = - B4 MBAT9 13,625 362,104
= = = = 720 = 720 568 77
= = = = uno o U479 375689 14193 389,882
f § - - - S omy By t
_ i _ _ _ - Y A
= = 107 = = = 107 - 107
1 - - - - T T T
1 - - - - - (74 -
87266 560,322 819 5050%  244783% 1440319% 2,338,559 31410 2,369,969

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,251,293,000 (2012 (restated): HK$1,928,670,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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4 B 4 B K CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2013 HEZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

Mt =B-=F —F-CF

Nofes 2013 2012
FET THET
HK$000 HK$ 000
REREEB HERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR75E AT ) Profit before tax 557,235 168,461
ERTHIREELRE - Adjustments for:

BE KA Finance costs 6 16,331 8,813

NS vl Share of profits of associates (6,402) (4,756)

ISVON Interest income 5 (12,037) (20,159

ERRE ZBREWA Dividend income from listed investments 5 (158) (142)

HE s « e MR loss/(gain) on disposal and write-off of items

HAZER/ (BF) of property, plant and equipment 7 16,005 (466)
HEREMEZ BH Gain on disposal of invesiment properties 5 (478) (27)
HENBRFHEZIFRD Cain on disposal of non-current assef classified

BEZEF as held for sale 5 (191,872 =

DARSHEE S < 2 BB PR T 52 Equity-setfled share option expense 7 107 424

e Depreciation 7 81,411 64,829

BRAFEFABRIREZ Fair value losses/(gains) on investments at fair

RYEER/(BF) %8 value through profit or loss, net 7 (532) 901
fTEERmIAC ATEESR Fair value losses on derivative

financial instruments 7 1,350 9,700

REMELNTEZE Changes in fair value of invesiment properiies 7 (30,702) (28,800)

Hith B EMERE Wirite-back of impairment of other assefs 7 (110) (30)

EWE S8R FURIE Impairment of trade receivables 7 5,842 2,876

MRFEZ R #IRFE Writedown of inventories to net

realisable value 7 458 29

Hit AR E Impairment of other receivables 7 2,000 =

—HEE AR RRZRE Impairment of an amount due from an associate 7 12 33

438,460 201,686
ERTPMERFEHRIFEE Increase in properties under development and

pA/ES il properties held for sale (23,998) (300,260
FERD,/ (M) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 5,766 (9,793)
XFBEBAHIE Decrease/[increase) in amounts due from

2R/ () customers for contract works 47,773 [59,009)
FEWE SRR,/ (35h0) Decrease/|increase] in frade receivables (310,944) 21,740
HipEUGRE « TR FTER Decrease/|increase) in other receivables,

HE: 2 de: ) prepayments and deposits 10,344 (14,228)
R E B IR B FURIE NN Increase in trade payables and accruals 150,171 4914
HitENHIE - 2RI e R Increase in other payables, deposits received

FEMCRIEE N and receipts in advance 5114 842
REFEBEHIE Increase/(decrease) in amounts due fo customers

FoEEm,/ Ced) for contract works 344,062 [40,329)

BUETe M/ (L) Increase/(decrease] in deposits received (185,816) 153,231
KB/ (RAR)EEEBHRE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 480,932 [41,2006)
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A B 4 W B & CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 March 2013 B#E-Z—=F=A=1+—HI-FE

KB/ (AR)EE%B2BE
BRREARKMNE

(TRE B -

BB

Hfth o[
BREREHA :

BB

Hfth o[
SNEE R 2

KA/ (AR)EE%H

ZRE B

B 4883
FEFE

REREXBZRERE
BUH S
EAREZBREMA
BAYR - BN EREHRB

WEEmx - MERRERE
BEffEIE
RBRLEBANEZERATR

YR SRR R SR 2R
HEHE-RHIB AR
BRZEWET 2
BAVEFABSZRE
w,/ ()
HEYR B RREHEE
RS 50A
HENBRFHEZ
FRBEEZFREFA
R BAA
HEREMEMEHR
HE—FEHB ARSI #R

BYE N B R B HIEN

RRHR LMD, (1)
AV ERER =A%
B2 T BT SR

ARNKREEB RS REFR
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Mz
Notes

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Taxes paid in the People's Republic of China
[the "PRC"):
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Taxes refunded in the PRC:
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Effect of foreign exchange rafe changes, net

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Dividend income from listed invesiments
Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition of items of property,

plant and equipment 17
Deposit received in respect of proposed disposal

of an owner-occupied property 28
Acquisition of non-controlling inferests 42
Deposit received in respect of proposed partial

disposal of a subsidiary 30
Decrease/|increase) in investments at fair

value through profit or loss
Proceeds on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of non-current asset

classified as held for sale,

net of fransaction cost 28
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties
Partial disposal of a subsidiary 41
Increase in amounts due from/loans

fo associates
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash
Decrease in time deposits with original maturity

of more than three months when acquired

Net cash flows used in investing activities

—B-=F Z—ZT-——F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
480,932 [41,200)
(30,798) (19,835
(78,201)  [339,385)
— 21
13,025 —
(835) 15,395
384,123 (405,800)
12,037 20,159
134 142
(75,264) (303,777
(3,909 (9,427)
— 31,500

— (150,000)

6,000 —
(268,535) 118,750
1,351 1,080
281,166 —
4,571 214
68 —
(382) (5,564
19,414 (23,335)
— 119,262
(23,349) (200,996
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4 B 4 B K CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 March 2013 B#E-Z—=F=A=+—HI-FE

Wit
Nofes
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inferest paid on bank borrowings
New bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Issue of new shares for share opfions exercised 34

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
Interim dividend paid
Final dividend paid

Net cash flows from financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, nef

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 27
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity

of less than three months when acquired 27

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position

ERgMBERARAD

e
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
(17,507) (12,785)
885,474 509,105
(648,513)  (370,237)
— 2,091
(4,875) (795)
(17,453) (13,090
(34,907) (34,891)
162,219 79,398
522,993 [527,398)
484,064 990,749
11,395 20,713
1,018,452 484,064
488,870 275,816
529,582 208,248
1,018,452 484,064

F£4% 2012/2013
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W % R UL & STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2013 =B—=#=A=+—A
HriF —B-=F ZT--F%
Nofes 2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
) ENEI Inferests in subsidiaries 18 1,053,556 989,023
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
BNRERE® Prepayments and deposits 25 3,039 220
RITER Bank balances 257 230
BREEE Total current assets 3,296 450
nREEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
RSB AR ZFIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 18 222,445 101,610
RN E SRR SR 508 Trade payables and accruals 29 4,515 1,619
HiENTELE KT ® Other payables and deposits received 30 6,109 -
mrEaE Total current liabilities 233,069 103,229
RBEEFE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (229,773) (102,779
EEFE Net assets 823,783 886,244
& EQUITY
BT Issued capital 34 87,266 87,266
& Reserves 36lb) 736,517 798,978
s Total equity 823,783 886,244
SRR BYE
FUNG CHIU CHAK, VICTOR JENNIFER KWOK
EE EF
Director Director
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ERgMBERARAD

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company was located at 20th Floor, One Island South,
No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

e foundation piling

*  property development

O property investment and management
*  machinery leasing and frading

®  electrical and mechanical ("E&M”) engineering

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ["HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Cerfified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, financial assets af fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments, which have been measured at fair
value. A non-current asset classified as held for sale was stated at the
lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell as further
explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

F£4% 2012/2013
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.1 RERB2EEE)

o=y J=F -2

FANBHRREBALTRENB AR
(AW AKENDEEZ-_F—=F=7A
=T—HEFEZHMBRE - MEAF
BARRE 2 B & TS BREAR
WHRAB—REFHBERE - WEARZ
RiEm W B (AR & BRI 4
EHESRERE  BEEZIEHIRRL
ZBRLE - FESEARRIRZZ S5
BeEERARREZET  RHNAE
RS LERARRE - HEREAR
B R -

BB R —RRBAR 2
E AR R D R R I S AR R He i ©

H—EHE AR B EES T
T Bk A R - B B 5]
AN -

AR R A B L 72 1R - Al
RITER(|MBLR 2 EE(RERE)
FEME - (i S HER R 2 R E
B R i) M EE SRR RATERLZ5
WHEBAK(| ERKEZRFE - (iE
AIRE 2 E 2 N FE R st A s
ZEBBIEM - AREBEREMEE
WARERZ TG s D ED B E Bk
HRH - GAEERME

Annual Report 2012/2013

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and ifs subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the
"Group'| for the year ended 31 March 2013. The financial sfatements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the dafe on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All infra-group
balances, fransactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intro-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-
controlling inferest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii] the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |iii] the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment refained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified fo profit or loss or refained profits, as appropriate.
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ERgMBERARAD

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 Firsttime Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard's ~
Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of

Fixed Dates for Firsttime Adoprers

HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Disclosures — Transters of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes -
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKAS 12, the adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had
no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred tax for
invesiment property measured at fair value and introduce a rebutiable
presumption that deferred tax on invesiment property measured at fair
value should be determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the
requirement previously in HK(SICHnt 21 /Income Taxes — Recovery of
Revalved Non-Depreciable Assets that deferred tax on non-depreciable
assefs, measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should
always be measured on a sale basis. The Group had adopted HKAS
12 Amendments from 1 April 2012.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

The Group has previously provided deferred tax on fair value gains on
its investment properties assuming that the carrying amounts of these
properties will be recovered through use. Upon the adoption of HKAS
12 Amendments, the Group re-measured the deferred fax relating fo ifs
investment properties based on the presumption that they are recovered
entirely through sale as if this new policy had always been applied. The
fax consequences in Hong Kong of a sale of the investment property
and of the entity owning the investment property are not significantly

different.

In Mainland China, the fax consequences of a sale of the invesiment
property or of the entity owning the investment property may be
different. The Group's business model is that the entity owning the
investment property will recover the value through use and on this basis
the presumption of sale has been rebutted. Consequently, the Group
has confinued to recognise deferred taxes on the basis that the values of
its investment properties in Mainland China are recovered through use.
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B BERREEEE(E) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

BE) o AT The effects of the above change are summarised below:

—E-=F —E——f&F

2013 2012
FET THTT
HK$000 HK$ 000
é:té_t —H=+—HItFEZ Consolidated Income Statement for
FERm Ak the year ended 31 March
il ?%ffdﬁﬂi'iﬂ Decrease in income fax expense 360 305
AR R AR AR SR A A AN Increase in profit attributable fo ordinary
equity holders of the Company 360 305
FRERRFIZMCEN) Increase in basic earnings per share (HK cent) 0.04 0.03
hﬂxﬁﬁfﬁﬁ’ﬂi‘ﬁﬂ(/ﬁm Increase in diluted eamings per share (HK cent) 0.04 0.03
R BRI Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position
—E-=F —T—=-f =—ET——%F
ZA=+-B =A=+-A MmA—A
31 March 31 March 1 April
2013 2012 2011
FET AT FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ERTIEE ERD Decrease in deferred tax liabilities 1,769 1,409 1,104
RERFIZ N Increase in refained profits 1,769 1,409 1,104
BRBEBETEBRETERA Mk Due to the retrospective application of the amendments which has
MFER  R_E——FOMHA-BZ&E resulted in the restatement of items in the consolidated statement of
ARBRRRERTBERRLES financial position, a consolidated statement of financial position as af 1

April 2011 has been presented in the financial statements.
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2.3 CHRMAEEARERZEBYER

g

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

AEBHARSHHHRRERAUTER
B RERZ AT R ERT BB R

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.
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HKFRS T Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS @

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Firstime Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standardls —
Government loans’

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsefting Financial Assets
and Financial liabilities*

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Inferests in Other Entities®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Enfities®

Fair Valve Measurement?
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(IFRICHnt 20

HK(IFRIC}Hnt 21

Annual Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of ltems
of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits?

Separafe Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsefting Financial Assets and
Financial liabilities®

Amendments to HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets —
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Miné?

levies®

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
in June 20122

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2015
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

The Group s in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position fo stafe whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enfity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its

activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
stafement fo the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's inferests in subsidiaries are stated atf cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an enfity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group
has a long ferm interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulfing from fransactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated fo the extent of the Group's invesiments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assef transferred. The Group's invesiments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position af the Group's share of
net assefs under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
fesfing for an asset is required (other than properties under development,
properties held for sale, inventories, construction confract assefs,
financial assets, invesiment properties and non-current assets classified
as held for sale), the asset's recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset's value in use and its fair value less costs fo sell, and
is defermined for an individual assef, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit fo which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the esfimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-ax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific fo the asset. An impairment loss is charged
o the income statement in the period in which it arises in those expense

categories consistent with the function of the impaired assef.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of an assef, but nof to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined [net of any depreciation/
amortisation] had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited fo the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 FESHEERBEE) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)
BEAL Related parties
ETERT - -7 B RRE A party is considered fo be related fo the Group if:
BzREAL
(o) ZAR—BATHZALZEE [a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
HZAL and that person
(i) sk L EIEFIAEE [l has control or joint control over the Group;
[i] BEAEEBEERTZE : % i) has significant influence over the Group; or
i) BAAKREINEEEQF (i} is a member of the key management personnel of the
ZETBRERAEBHEDT—F Group or of a parent of the Group;
KB
= or
b &K AMNE NHIER—EGEEZ (b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
R applies:

1)
- filg

BAKEBR % il the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

R
N i
=
il
!
ﬂ‘

i) —EBBASEB(ISE— (i) one entily is an associate or joint venture of the other enfity
ERZBRE WEARAA or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
HRRWBAR) ZHBE N entity);

AgARERE

il ZERBEAEERFR—-% (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
=HhZRERE party;

iv) —BERAFE=-FEBE (iv)  one enfily is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
EEERFZ-ERBRE= entity is an associate of the third entity;

HERBZBERT

V) “EBRAANEEN —KH (v}  the enfity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
AEBRBEZERE of employees of either the Group or an entfity related fo the
8 #)18 F i &% 60 18 A 12 48 Group;

FIEtEl

(vi Ei?@%%[o]ﬁﬁ?&/\i? il (vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
o A identified in (a); and

(vii) (o)) TEEALTHEREEX (vii) o person identified in (alli) has significant influence over the
FEYBLER(IZER entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
BRANFEEBAESMHH the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

F—RKE e
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of
a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assefs classified as held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly atributable costs of bringing the assefs
fo its working condition and location for ifs infended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
info operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
fo the income stafement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at infervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo ifs residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

leasehold land under finance lease  Over the lease ferms

Buildings 5%
Equipment and machinery 10% - 33'/3%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

leasehold improvements 10%-33"/5%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation [Contc)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, af least af each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the income sfatement in the
year the assef is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an invesiment property) held fo
eamn renfal income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, invesiment properties are sfated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions af the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they

arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
refirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only fo terms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets and ifs sale must

be highly probable.

Non-current assefs (other than investment properties and financial assets)
classified as held for sale are measured af the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs fo sell. Property, plant and equipment
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which include all development expenditure, borrowing cosfs and
other costs directly atributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been presold or which
are infended for sale and are expected o be completed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current asses.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct cosfs attributable to the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

leases

leases that fransfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal fifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded fogether with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assefs held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the assefs. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income stafement so as fo provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease ferms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operafing leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straightline basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are charged
fo the income statement on the siraightline basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assefs at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assefs are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assefs at fair valve through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also

classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective
hedging insfruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with nef changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated af the date of initial recognition and only if
the criteria under HKAS 39 are safisfied.

The Group evaluates ifs financial assefs at fair value through profit or
loss (held for trading) fo assess whether the infent to sell them in the
near ferm is still appropriate. When, in rare circumsfances, the Group
is unable fo trade these financial assets due fo inactive markets and
management's intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly
changes, the Group may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification
from financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss fo loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —Z2—=#=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Financial assefs at fair valve through profit or loss (Cont d)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded af fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host confracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the confract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required.

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
deferminable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the income
statement in ofher expenses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial assef or a group of financial
assefs is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event’) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in inferest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont )

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial
assefs that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group defermines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assef's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
[excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective inferest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition|. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current

effective inferest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income stafement.
Interest income confinues fo be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of inferest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring affer the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusfing the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income sfatement.
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —Z2—=#=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has fransferred ifs rights fo receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has fransferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
assef or has enfered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor refained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group defermines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly atiributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include frade payables, interestbearing
bank borrowings, other payables, derivative financial insfruments and a
loan from an associate.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities /[Contd))

Financial liabilities at fair valve through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging insfruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the income sfatement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the income statement does not include any inferest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criferia in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, inferestbearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rafe method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income stafement when the liabiliies are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an infegral part of the
effective interest rafe. The effective interest rafe amortisation is included
in finance cosfs in the income statement.
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities /[Cont )

Financial guarantee confracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment fo be made fo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability af its fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different ferms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income stafement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right fo offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to seffle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and seffle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Fair valve of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are fraded in active markets
is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for fransaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value is defermined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market fransactions; reference to the current market value
of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and optfion pricing models.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rafe swaps, to hedge ifs foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
insfruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivafive confract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assefs when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly fo the income statement, except for the effective portion of
cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments [Contd/

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging

instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into

current and non-current portions based on an assessment

of the facts

and circumstances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

Where the Group expects fo hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the
derivative is classified as non-current (or separated into current
and non-current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying ifem.

Embedded derivatives that are nof closely related to the host
confract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host

confract.

Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
insfruments are separated info current portions and non-current
portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,

and net realisable value affer making due allowance for any obsolete

or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated

selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to complefion and

disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the cosfs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date fo the estimated fotal cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference tfo the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees earned, measured by
the proportion of cosfs incurred fo date to the esfimated fofal cost of the
relevant confract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a confract customer.

Where progress billings exceed confract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to a confract customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposifs, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the sfatements of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including ferm deposits,
which are not restricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required fo seftle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value af the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected fo be required to sefile the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance costs in the income sfatement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax

Income fax comprises current and deferred fax. Income fax relating fo
items recognised outside income sfatement is recognised, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assefs and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected fo be recovered from or paid fo the
faxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacfed or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
faking into consideration inferprefations and pracfices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences af the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assefs and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

®  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, ot the time of the transaction, aoffects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the femporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax [Conta)

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
fax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused fax losses can be ufilised, except:

®  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred fax assets are
only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred fax asset to be uilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed af the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
faxable profit will be available o allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is setiled, based on tax rates [and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists 1o set off current fax assefs against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

(bl

(c)

(d)

(e)

(o)

From foundation piling and E&M engineering contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

From machinery trading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease terms;

From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective inferest rate method by
applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument fo the nef carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

Dividend income

When the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who confribute
fo the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled fransactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-seffled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equitysefiled fransactions at the end of each
reporting period unfil the vesting date reflects the extent fo which the
vesfing period has expired and the Group's best esfimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit fo the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as af the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ulfimately vest, except
for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesfing condition is safisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or conditions are safisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-sefiled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the tofal fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Conta)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

Where an equity-sefiled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where nonesfing condifions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not mef. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of eamings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contfracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted fo be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Employee benefits (Conta)

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assefs of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percenfage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged fo the income statement as they became
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The ongoing
contributions to the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund refirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured its
refirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
participated in an approved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged fo the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assefs
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal goverment. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time fo get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assefs. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entfity in
the Group determines its own funcfional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing af the dates of the transactions. Monetary assefs
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated af the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on sefilement or translation of monefary items
are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates af the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or the income
statement is also recognised in other comprehensive income or the
income statement, respecfively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Con/c))

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As af the end of the
reporting period, the assefs and liabilifies of these entities are translated
info the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rafes
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income statements
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rafes for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating fo that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rafes for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and esfimates based on past
experience, expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of esfimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for impairment of frade receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of frade receivables
and on management’s judgement. Significant judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each cusfomer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were fo deferiorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provisions may be required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percenfage of completion of consfruction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers at the
end of the reporting period. These estimates are based on actual cost
incurred over the total budgefed cost. Corresponding confract revenue
is also esfimated by management. Because of the nature of the acfivity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the confract
activity is entered into and the date when the acfivity is complefed
usually fall info different accounting periods. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in
the budget prepared for each construction contract as the confract

progresses.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject fo income faxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in defermining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There
are fransactions and calculations for which the ulimate tox defermination
is uncerfain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were inifially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred fax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes (“LAT’)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 0% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon transfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these faxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China. The Group has not vet finalised its LAT calculation and payments
for most of its property development projects with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in defermining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates. Where the final
fax oufcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which such defermination is made.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provided. Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with infemnal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

[a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b)  the property development segment;

[c) the property investment and management segment;
(d)  the machinery leasing and trading segment; and
le]  the E&M engineering segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a
measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before fax.

The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains/(losses) from
the Group's financial instruments, gain on disposal of non-current asset
classified as held for sale, share of profits of associates as well as head
office and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred fax assefs, investments at fair value
through profit or loss, derivative financial insfruments, tax prepaid, time
deposits and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, fax payable, deferred tax liabiliies and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties af the then prevailing
market prices.
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31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

KENEER(E) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
o B 7 B E A Geographical information
() REIEEFKEZ (@)  Revenue from external customers
Bk A PEHE g8
Hong Kong Macay Esewhere in the PRC Conso\idcted

“3-zf o Z§-zfE CR0f I3-E TR IR-ZF DR
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
FAr AT FAr AT FAr AT FAT AT

S0 HSO0 RSO ASO0 MO0 A0 SO SO0

iR Seqment revente:
HETIERF Soles fo exlemal cusiomers 208170 2252005 703,593 = 785,516 06287 3767279 348,342
T EENARPREMNE The revenue information above is based on locations of the
HE o customers.
b) FRBEE (b)  Non-current assets
Bk 15 HERMHE &e
Hong Kong Macay Elsewhere in the PRC Consoldated
“3-zf o I§-zf RCfF IB-zf T IR-Zf CRIE
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
FAT FET 7T FEr 7T AT 7 AT
H$00 00 S0 S0 Mo S0 M0 000
187122 505,967 9845 03 1322228 1293634 1819195 1,799,694
RS EENEEMENE The non-current assets information above is based on locations of
AHEATRBETHIEEE ° the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.
BE—EFTEEFZEH Information about a major customer
I 25 #9640,230,0008 T(Z T — = Revenue of approximately HK$640,230,000 (2012
£ : 255,105,000 7T ) %K B 3 E T 15 HK$255,105,000) was derived from sales by the foundation piling
NEME—RFELZHE - segment fo a single cusfomer.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's tumover, represents the aggregate

of the value of foundation piling and E&M engineering contracts

certified by architects or quantity surveyors; income from the sale of

properties held for sale, income derived from machinery frading and

property management; and rental income from property and machinery

leasing, after eliminations of all significant infragroup transactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income and gains is as

follows:

Revenue:

Foundation piling

Property development

Property investment and management
Machinery leasing and trading

E&M engineering

ther income and gains:

Interest income
Insurance claims
Gain on disposal and write-off of ifems
of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Gain on disposal of non-current asset
classified as held for sale (note 28)
Subsidy income*
Fair value gains on invesiments at
fair value through profit or loss, net
Foreign exchange gains, net
Management service income
Dividend income from listed investments
Others

*

—EBE-=ZF —E——-F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
2,896,047 2,219,025
761,435 64,967
24,723 31,896
31,910 22,834
53,164 9,620
3,767,279 2,348,342
12,037 20,159
313 —

— 466

478 27
191,872 —
1,183 2,688

532 —

— 2,052

1,862 1,562

158 142

7,409 4,399
215,844 31,495

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating fo this income.
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts:

- wholly repayable within five years
- wholly repayable over five years

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

31 March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

3]

GROUP
—E-=F ZZT——F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
14,679 7,048
1,652 1,765
16,331 8,813

The Group's profit before tax is arrived after charging/(credifing):

Depreciation
Minimum lease payments
under operating leases of
land and buildings
Rental of construction equipment
Audifors remuneration

Employee benefit expense
(including directors’
remuneration - nofe 8):
Wages and salaries
Equitysefiled share opfion expense
Pension scheme contributions

Kzt
Notes

—E-=F —E——f&F

2013 2012
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
81,411 64,829
12,311 10,980
35,919 19,053
2,587 2,582
339,745 277,141
107 424
10,073 7,434
349,925 284,999
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31 March 2013 —F—=4=A=+—F
7. BRBIADEFI(E) 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)
AEE 2 RBATEFIEMBR /Gt T The Group's profit before tax is arrived after charging/(crediting):
FIRIARER : (&) (Contd)
weE —E-=f% ZT-=F
Nofes 2013 2012
FET AT
HK$000 HK$ 000
INESE 18, (A - R Foreign exchange losses/(gains), nef* 1,355 [2,052)
FEIE ZRRFORE * Impairment of frade receivables* 24 5,842 2,876
BEBEFEMEEKE S Recovery of frade receivables
BRaR* written off in prior years* - (102)
MRFEE A 2T FE® Write-down of inventories to
nef realisable value* 458 29
Hofth e AR IR E Impairment of other receivables* 25 2,000 -
0 S A R SR IR Write-off of other receivables* 1,788 —
HE LMY - Hes Loss/(gain) on disposal and
REBEE BB/ (BA) * writeoff of items
of property, plant and equipment* 16,005 (4606)
HEREME 2 BF* Gain on disposal of
investment properties* (478) (27)
HESERAFHE L IERBEE Gain on disposal of non-current asset
2 B classified as held for sale* 28 (191,872) —
NFEEBE/ (BF) 358 Fair value losses/(gains), net:
BRAVES A BRI RE" Investments at fair value
through profit or loss* (532) 901
ITETA-TEEREARS* Derivative instruments - transaction
not qualifying as hedge* 1,350 9,700
REMEZNTES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 15 (30,702) (28,800
Hip & ERERE Wiite-back of impairment
of other assefs* (110) (30)
—FRIlE AR RFRIE* Impairment of an amount due
from an associate* 12 33
BSEERN HEBRA Rental income from operating
leases of machinery (18,309 (10,911)
REMEES KA Rental income on investment properties
BEEEELH1,269,000/87T less direct operating expenses
(ZE—=%:8,252,00087T) of HK$ 11,269,000
(2012: HK$8,252,000) (11,893 (13,639
FiRE R EBA Dividend income from
listed investments* (158) (142)

o REERMEYE BHERRER ¢
B2 E#E2,1030008m(ZE—=
FR)FAGESBERRZIHEENK
K AR EREGAER
R[EM W FEIFMERKA
REFIIA -
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These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income and
gains” in the consolidated income statement, except for loss on disposal and
writeoff of items of property, plant and equipment of HK$2,103,000 (2012:
Niil) which is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement.
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Goveming the Listing of Securities (the “listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”] and Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

%5
GROUP
—EBE-=F Z—ZT——F
2013 2012
FET FET

HK$ 000 HK$'000

Fees:
Executive directors - =
Independent non-executive directors 540 432

Other emoluments of executive directors:

Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind 50,603 42,744
Equity-sefiled share option expense 107 424
Pension scheme contributions 112 96

51,362 43,696

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2008, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their services fo the
Group, under a share option scheme of the Company, further defails of
which are sef out in note 35 fo the financial statements and the report of
the directors. The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the income statement over the vesting period, was defermined as af
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.

F£4% 2012/2013
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31 March 2013 —Z2—=#=A=+—H

8. EBME(#E) 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
BESENSUESHENT The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:
M- 2R

kEYFE LRESfR2 pidrNe
Salaries,  BEREZH HE

allowances  Equity-settled Pension
#&  ondbenefits  share option scheme @t
Fees in kind expense  contributions Total

FEx FEx TEn TEx FEn
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—g-= 2013
HTES: Executive directors:
REZLA Mr. Francis Cheung - 15,055 - 14 15,069
b e Mr. Fung Chiv Chak, Victor - 13,002 - 14 13,016
ke LA Mr. David Chien - 928 - 14 942
PGS/ ME Miss Jennifer Kwok - 5,926 - 14 5,940
BRELE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung - 5,842 - 14 5,856
BRLE Mr. Wong Kay' - 2,762 - 14 2776
bt Mr. Lau Kin Fai - 3,730 107 14 3,851
REERL M. Harvey Jackel Cheung - 3,358 - 14 3,372
- 50,603 107 112 50,822
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
directors:
BEEEE Mr. Fan Chor Ho 180 - - - 180
BN Mr. Tse Man Bun 180 - - - 180
ETARE Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 180 - - - 180
EX Mr. Li Kit Chee? - - - - -
540 - - - 540
@&z Tofal 540 50,603 107 112 51,362

96 Annual Report 2012/2013
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31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

EEME(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
ENMENEGUERMESNT : (&) The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:
(Cont'd)
- 2R

REWHE  REL2 Bhre
Solories,  EERREL HE s

dlowonces  Equitysefiled Pension
#&  andbenefits  share opfion scheme @t
Fees in kind expense  confribufions Tolal

TET TET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

e 2012
BES: Executive directors:
RRELE Mr. Francis Cheung = 13,228 = 12 13,240
BAELL Mr. Fung Chiy Chak, Victor = 10,348 = 12 10,360
7 Gy Mr. David Chien - 964 - 12 976
IHENE Miss Jennifer Kwok = 5,028 = 12 5,040
HRBLE Mr. Chiv Chin Hung - 4932 - 12 4,944
ERLL Mr. Wong Kay' - 2,578 - 12 2,590
gl e Mr. Lau Kin Fai = 3,216 424 12 3,652
REELE M. Harvey Jackel Cheung = 2,450 = 12 2,462
- 42 744 424 96 43264
BUFHTES Independent non-execufive
directors:
SBERE Mr. Fan Chor Ho 144 = = = 144
AR Mr. Tse Man Bun 144 = = = 144
ETREE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 144 = = = 144
432 - = - 432
@t Tolal 432 42 744 424 96 43,696
1 RBE_Z-—=$=-A=1T—HILF ' Subsequent fo year ended 31 March 2013, Mr. Wong Kay's resignation as
B - %ﬁf‘ﬁiﬁqﬂﬂ-‘ ARTESR an executive director of the Company became effective on 1 May 2013.
RZE—=FRA—HEXK
? FRIFERB-—=F=A=+— 2 Mr. Li Kit Chee was appointed as an independent non-executive director
BRZERALDBIEIIFNTES - of the Company on 31 March 2013.
AEER  BEEENEAREREL There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo
A&z 25k - waive any remunerafion during the year.

F£4% 2012/2013
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31 March 2013 —Z2—=#=A=+—H

9. HuESHZEER 9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
RAFEERBEFE AluGaH & The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years
BURARAES - AMSFFEN L are all directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration are sef
B8 out in note 8 above.
10. FriS#i 10. INCOME TAX
EEMNEHREANREBEE 2 M5 Hong Kong profits tax has been provided af the rate of 16.5% (2012:
ERB AN Z2165%(ZF—ZF: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
16.5%) £ B4 o B 4 3 [ B 2R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
gkl HIBR R AKBE LR 2 H calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which
TTERBERGE - the Group operafes.
&=
GROUP
—F-=F —E—-F
2013 2012
FET TIET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
(#FE3)
(Restated)
ARERGM 2 HIARH - Provision for tax in respect of profit for the year:
RE : PRC:
B Hong Kong 11,000 30,014
H b= Elsewhere 165,926 19,695
176,926 49,709
FEERETR(BERAE) Underprovision/ [overprovision) in the prior years:
FE PRC:
BB Hong Kong (60) 6
H it * Elsewhere? - 22,137
60) 22,143
BRI (P 33) Deferred tax (note 33) 18,265 7,769
AEE 7 HIAR X B Total fax charge for the year 195,131 79,621

# BE-_Z——-—F#=A=+—R81L * During the year ended 31 March 2012, an assessment was received in respect
FE DRGSR AEELENBA of the Group's disposal of subsidiaries and accordingly, capital gains tax of
A 2 s B b A AN s R HK$22,137,000 was paid.
22,137,000% 7T
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31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

10. FRS®i(4&) 10. INCOME TAX (Contd)
ERARARA R REME D B ERR A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
BR 2 EE MR E 2 BRBADEN Z sfatutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its
HIERXENERHEFE 2 HIARX subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax charge af the effective tax rate, is
ZEBRIT as follows:
£E
GROUP
—B-=f —T—-F
2013 2012
FHET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000
(48 Z5)
(Restated)
BREE AR Profit before tax 557,235 168,461
PUEER R HE 2 BIE Tax at the statufory rates 76,134 23,225
IR ER R Provision for land appreciation fax 113,037 14,256
THIBERRBTE Tax effect of land appreciation fax 15,537 3,982
SRR RRRIBMIEL 2% Adjusiments in respect of current tax of prior years (60) 22,143
B AR EG R Profits attributable to associates (1,056) (785)
BARBBA Income not subject to tax (35,978) (2,534)
AT HRHIEZAX Expenses not deductible for fax 23,109 19,743
HAEBEHBEAEHEARZ Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
AR 2 profits of the Group's subsidiaries
s 7 in Mainland China (691) (7,675)
DRBEFEZHERR Tax losses utilised from prior years (1,522) (1,489)
RERTIEEE Tax losses not recognised 6,621 8,755
BASBEERWEAE 2BIERE  Tox charge af the Group's effective rate 195,131 79,621
11, RATEBERRRER R 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
ARRRIBRREE BE—T—= The consolidated profit affributable to ordinary equity holders of the
FZA=ZT—HEFEAAAEBRK Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 includes a loss of
RIEGEZA RN EEFES,790,000%8 HK$8,790,000 (2012: HK$3,470,000) which has been dealt with in
T(ZE— % : 3,470,000 7t ) (Kt the financial statements of the Company (note 36(b)).
FE36[b) °
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —Z2—=#=A=+—H

12. RE 12. DIVIDENDS
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$ 000
AEFRMRE Dividends paid during the year:
BE_T——F=A=+t—BIFE Findlin respect of the financial
AEARR B — B E EAR4. O year ended 31 March 2012 -
(HEZZ—F=A=1+—H1L HK4.0 cents [year ended
FE : 4.0%84) 31 March 2011: HK4.0 cents)
per ordinary share 34,907 34,891
AR B — SR T mAR 2 0L Interim - HK2.0 cents {2012: HK1.5 cents)
(ZT—ZF : 1.5%M) per ordinary share 17,453 13,090
52,360 47,981
FERIRN RS - Proposed final dividend:
RERRR B — FRREBARS. 078 Final - HK5.0 cents (2012: HK4.0 cents)
(ZZ—ZF - 4.08) per ordinary share 43,633 34,907

AERERBIRN 2 RPBEAEARRF]
BERENG A B BORBEFA g LHE -
2SI IR R IR (RIS,

. ARBEBRRRELGEREF

BRERBHNTDRBARFEBRAR
RIE(E N F 25 71 348,479,000 T
(Z2-ZF(®EF) : 97,953,000
BT RN AFEAD BT EBBINE
FH8872,665 03 (ZF——%F -
871,953,882/R)5tH -

BE_Z—=6=A=+—BHILEE
ZEREFERNRBADREBR
PR FE 15 4 2% 1 348,479,000 7T
(Z2—Z5(&&%) : 97,953,000
TU)EE - SRR A Z T ER
Bi# - RENCHEITERREE - A
AEEREARRNEMA RS AR
RREZFENTEBRESEERT
15,765 (ZF— =% : 373,421 %)
TR T8 -

Annual Report 2012/2013

13.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of
the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do nof reflect the final dividend payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year afiributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of HK$348,479,000 (2012 |restated): HK$97,953,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 872,665,903 (2012:
871,953,882) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2013 is based on the profit for the year atfributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$348,479,000
(2012 (restated): HK$97,953,000). The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during that year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed fo have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of share options info ordinary shares during that year of

15,765 (2012: 373,421).
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

14. Y% - #HBERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
#5 GROUP
RER  HER
Bz kB8 B
HHREF  Equipment  Fumitre AE B NERE
ond and and and Motor Motor ~ Leasehold it
buildings  machinery fixtres ~ vehicles yocht - improvements Total

FEn FEn FEn FEn FEL FEL 7
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSUO00  HKSO0O  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSO00

ZE-ZEZAZ+-H 31 March2013

WA Cost
£ At beginning of year 215,463 883,293 13,740 21,006 6,098 46,407 1,186,007
hE Addiions = 67977 2,669 2,600 = 11,445 84,691
BRERHEL Transfer from properties
W) held for sale note 22) 2,032 - - - - - 2,032
b/ Digesc bl ST 0% ) Y AL
B A% Exchange redlignment 28 139 31 87 - 475 760
RZE-=F=A=1-0 A 3] March 2013 07523 915630 15345 23,450 6,098 54020 1,232,072
ZithE Accumulated depreciafion
Fiife - and impaiment:
£ At beginning of year 6,853 658,023 12,208 15,802 6,098 40,700 739,684
KERHE Depreciafion provided
g during the year 7913 65,825 919 2,331 - 4423 81411
e/ Disposals/wiiteof - 19243 (993 (243) - 3,583 (24,002)
[E 1 Exchange realignment 2 1 2 73 - 455 667
RZF-ZFZA=+-A Ar31 March 2013 14768 704716 12,160 17,963 6,098 41995 797,700
REAE Net carrying amoun'
RZF-ZF=ZA=+-A Ar3] March 2013 202,755 210914 3,185 5,487 = 12031 434372
RZF-ZE=A=T-A  Ar31 March 2012 208,610 225,270 1,532 5,204 - 5707 446,323

£% 2012/2013 101
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14. ¥ - BBERRBE)

EE(E)

“E-F=A=t-H 3] March 2012

WA Cost

£ At beginning of year

hE Addifions

HE /s Disposals/witeoff

BRTARARFLEZ  Tonderio noncurent
FRIEE asset clossfied os held
(RzE28) for sale [note 28

[E 3 9% Exchange relignment

RZE-ZF=R=1-H A 3] March 2012

Zithe Accumulated depreciation

TR : and impaimen:

) At beginning of year

KRERHE Depreciafion provided
B during the year

HE /i Disposcls/writeoft

BRZABAMILEZ  Tiondertononcurent
FRBEE assef clossfled as held
(F3E28) for sale [note 28)

[ A% Exchange relignment

RZE-ZF=A=1t-H  A3] March 2012

REAE Net carying amount:
RZF-F=A=1-B A31 March2012

RZZ——F=A=1-A A 31 March 2011
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

GROUP (Cont'd)
RER FHR
i £ i
THREFT  Fqupment  Fumitve i BE WERE
land ond ond ond Motor Molor  leasehold it
buldings ~ machinery fstues vehicles yocht  improvemens Tolal
T T FAT T TAT TAT TAT
HS00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKEO00 AR 000
138482 794,144 17,805 19,712 6,098 42,306 1,018,547
214786 104,521 215 2,019 = 4905 326,446
- (15917) (4,433) 076] = 217) (23443
(137,809) - - - - - [137,809)
- 545 153 251 - 1,313 2,262
215463 883293 13,740 21,006 6,008 46,407 1,186,007
14551 62390 15,245 14,328 6,098 38542 712724
9313 19,614 621 2,284 - 2997 04,829
- (15,971) 3,76] [976] - 17 (22829
(17,011) - - - - - (17011)
- 420 107 166 - 1278 1971
6,85 658,023 12,208 15,802 6,008 40,700 739,084
208610 225270 1532 5,204 - 5707 446,323
123931 170,184 2,560 5,384 - 3764 305,823




14. 9% - BRRRE(E)

AREFADE  BEMREREF
57198,229,000 8 L(ZE—_%F:
206,007,000 7T ) 2 13t R FER
BRLRTHHEOFE -

AEBETLHRET  RIELEED
BERTRITERAEERE S TRTE
B ZHEM(MFE32) -

AEEETRERESRELEROS
MYE=D - - IHRBHFENTH
WK MEE37(a)

ARERBEERNFERER 2RE
R R N AR Rt I E R E R
BT -

14.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

The Group's land and buildings included in property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of HK$198,229,000 (2012:

HK$206,007,000] is situated in Hong Kong and is held under a
medium term lease.

Certain of the Group's land and buildings, equipment and machinery
were pledged to banks as security for cerfain banking facilities granted
fo the Group (note 32).

Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are
included in note 37(a) to the financial statements.

The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for
use under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses are as follows:

&=

GROUP
—BE=F =—E=E——fF
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$000 HK$ 000
PR Cost 89,187 85,987
RitE Accumulated depreciation (64,421) (59,3406)
ZEDREER Accumulated impairment losses (182) (182)
REFE Net book value 24,584 26,459

F£4% 2012/2013
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15. BEYE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
&8
GROUP
- —F——F
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$000
REYZ REE Carrying amount at beginning of year 455,590 411,464
HE Disposals (4,093) (187)
NHEE Fair value changes 30,702 28,800
B 5% 8% Exchange realignment 5,679 15,513
RERZREE Carrying amount at end of year 487,878 455,590
REB 7 IREBMERATHEES & The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
S am T terms in the following geographical locations:
—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2013
HE
PRC
BB Hititth @ Foh
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
FERRR AT Medium term leases 22,530 — 22,530
REIMEH long term leases - 465,348 465,348
22,530 465,348 487,878
—E2——-H#=R=+—H 31 March 2012
H
PRC
BA HAibin @ mEt
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERFR LY Medium term leases 20,350 — 20,350
REAEL long term leases = 435,240 435,240

20,350 435,240 455,590
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15. REME(E) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
AEECREMFEN_T—=4F=A The Group's investment properties were revalued on an open market,
=t HRBIEXABRYEMER existing use basis, as at 31 March 2013, by Vigers Appraisal and
BT E EFHEER AR A RR AR Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified
B RABRGEEERLE REME property valuers. The investment properties are leased fo third paries
DIRBEREMNEETE=F B# under operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
BMEZ2E—TPHFBEIRNMBRRWE note 37/(a) to the financial statements.
37la) e
AEEETREMFECEMTRITER Cerfain of the Group's investment properties were pledged to banks as
mAREREE TRITEE 2ER (M security for cerfain banking facilities granted to the Group [nofe 32).
$32)

16. BRI 16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

£E

GROUP
—B-=f —T——F
2013 2012
FHET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000
FkTF Balance at beginning of year 1,247,755 557,336
REERE Additions during the year 365,014 695,526
EREHAREE ZWEMITE22)  Transfer to properties held for sale (note 22) (596,385) (28,053)
b 5 AR Exchange realignment 15,442 22,946
FUEETT Balance at end of year 1,031,826 1,247,755
BNERER > Current portion (187,880) (401,499
FERNERER Non-current portion 843,946 846,256

17. ef¥5lE 17. DEPOSITS PAID
ERKEDE BERXEEE XN Deposits of HK$3,909,000 (2012: HK$9,427,000) were paid for
7] £3,909,0008 T(Z T — % the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment.

9 427 000 TT) °
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B 8 X B

I EMBLD - KA

B8 X Bl 2 RK
WE

RMBRAZFIE
—FRHPL /R
BEZHD

E AEBEREEER61,287,000
B IT(ZF — Z F : 49,069,000
7o) (BREBER) 2ETHEAR
RZRFERRE  RAREHER
ARMELHE -

FR - KRB ZENE AR Z KRR
HRRME112,218,0008T(ZF—=
F: BERE17500087T) - fHEA
A2 R RRITB AR 2 A AEE
RREE - SIARBEELMBARE
FRARBREHIR—FANEE - MtA
FRBEEHMBAREFRIBARH
HERREF—FREE  URBET
ZEMNBLRRZ ERGER

ARARIBAEGENERMBARRFHE
TRERAFIERERKB0,000,000%
TT(ZF— =4 : 80,000,000% 1T) -
EHMB DR A ERBITE BREMS
RERBEEES -
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Amounts due from subsidiaries
Impairment*

Amounts due to subsidiaries

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —Z2—=#=A=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NG
COMPANY
—B-=F —E2—-fF

2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$ 000

Unlisted shares, at cost 16,721 20,733

1,198,122 1,017,359
(161,287)  (49,069)

1,036,835 968,290

(222,445) (101,610

Portion due within one year,

classified as current liabilities 222,445 101,610

1,053,556 989,023

g An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from subsidiaries
with @ carrying amount of HK$ 161,287,000 (2012: HK$49,069,000)
[before deducting the impairment loss) because the respective subsidiaries
had been lossmaking for some time.

During the year, the Company recognised an impairment of
HK$112,218,000 (2012: write-back of impairment of HK$175,000)
for those amounts due from subsidiaries. The amounts due from and
fo subsidiaries are unsecured and inferestfree. The balances with
subsidiaries included in the current liabilities are repayable on demand
or within one year whereas the balances with subsidiaries included in
non-current assets are not expected fo be repaid within one year from
the end of the reporting period and are considered as quasi-equity
loans fo those subsidiaries.

The Company has undertaken not to demand repayment of the amount
due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation Limited, of HK$80,000,000
(2012: HK$80,000,000), in order to let the subsidiary maintain
the required minimum working capital as stipulated by government
authorities.
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBRARFEBNOT -
AL,
ke xmE
Place of
incorporation/
£ registration
Name and operations

FAWE(ER)ERAR ML)
Tysan Foundation [Hong Kong] Limited
[note 1)

RAMETRERAR(MHE2K3)
Tysan Foundation Limited fnofes 2 and 3)

RARECRM)BRLDA(H:22)
Tysan Construction [Macau) Limited fnofe 2)

RABWESERAR (HZ2K3)
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited fnofes 2 and 3/

RAWRTIZ(BR)VBRARAMZ2)
Tysan Conractors (Hong Kong| Limited
[note 2)

RALNIRERAAAZ2)
Tysan Geotechnical Limited (nofe 2)

Bt
Hong Kong

Bt
Hong Kong

AP

Macau

Bt
Hong Kong

Bt
Hong Kong

Bt
Hong Kong

EBTR
BrEmBRE/
RAHE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

LR 100ET

(ZF—Z%F: 2871)

Ordinary HK$100
(2012: HK$2)

N
51,000,000 7T
BT
3,000,000 7T
Ordinary
HK$51,000,000
Deferred
HK$3,000,000

EAK
25,0002t
Ordinary
MOP25,000

gl
10,0008 7T
BT
200,000/ 7T

Ordinary HK$10,000

Deferred
HK$200,000
ERR2ET

Ordinary HK$2

LB 27T
Ordinary HK$2

ENNGI) S
ZBREEDL
Percentage
of equity
atfributable to
the Company
e
2013 2012
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

F£4% 2012/2013

Principal activities

REEK

Investment holding

EATHE
Foundation piling

SRS
Foundation piling

HHEE
Machinery hiring

HAEER

HRAEE AR
Project management
and provision

of consultancy

services

B R

Site investigation
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18. MIBLRERE(E)

TEMBLRFENT : (&)

=4

Name

TERMTRARARWZ2)
Proficiency Equipment Limited fnote 2)

TETREERRARNZ2)
Proficiency Engineering limited (nofe 2)

BIBBRAR(Hi22)
Lion Bright Limited (nofe 2)

RAERBRAR M 3)
Tysan Management Limited fnofe 3/

MEARAR
Sun Sparkle Limited
SREBLF

Great Unison Limited

FERERRARARF

Tysan Investment Limited

RAMELZRREARAT
Tysan Property Development
& Investment Limited

FAREBRNAR

Tysan Consfruction Company limited

Annual Report 2012/2013
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

AL,
Sk EFnH
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

&g
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

a5
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

&g
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&g
Hong Kong
Bt
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

2ETR
HrEMmBA/
BAEE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

=Tl
6,750,000
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

BT 28T
Ordinary HK$2

LR 2B T
Ordinary HK$2

LR 10087
B 2B T
Ordinary HK$100
Deferred HK$2

LB 28T
Ordinary HK$2
BT BT
Ordinary HK$ 1
BT 27T
Ordinary HK$2
LR 27T
Ordinary HK$2

ERR2ET
Ordinary HK$2

KRFELS
ZBERADL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
e
2013 2012
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

HHEERER
Machinery hiring
and trading

R TIRRS
REmAE
Provision of
engineering
services and
machinery hiring
KRAEEREE
Machinery hiring
and trading
hRER
Corporate
management

=35
Corporate financing
(=35
Corporate financing

BEEK

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

BEEK

Investment holding



18. MIBLREER(E)

TEMBARFENT : (&)

4

Name

hERERRAR(HE2)

Faithmark Investments Limited fnofe 2)

Tremend Yield Limited (#75£2)
[note 2)

=HREBEBBAR(H72)
Trions Investment Limited fnofe 2

EEREARAR(MZ2)

Sure Faith Investment limited fnofe 2)

BERFUEARRR(MEL2)

Duncan Properiies Limited fnofe 2/

Dragonhill limited (4722 2)
[note 2)

MR EBRAR (M 2)
Great Regent Invesiments Limited fnofe 2/

BEBRAR(HZ2)
Great Prosper Limited fnofe 2)

RAFWERE(XZ)
BRARMZ2KR4)

Tysan Property Development (Tianjin]
Company limited fnofes 2 and 4)

Cottontree Pacific Limited

Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited
(H2)
[note 2)

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

AL,
ke xmE
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

Bt

Hong Kong
20

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
20

Hong Kong
e/
PR

PRC/
Mainland China

RERLEE
British Virgin
Islands (“BVI")

BRE
Bermuda

EBTR
BrEmBRE/
RAHE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

TR 2 7T
Ordinary HK$2
LRI 2078

Ordinary HK$20

TR 2B
Ordinary HK$2

LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2

LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2

LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2

LB 27T
Ordinary HK$2

LB 1008
Ordinary HK$100

15,500,000 7T
US$15,500,000

LRI BT
Ordinary HK$ 1

E@RO0.1 AT
Ordinary HK$0. 1

ENNGI) S
ZBREEDL
Percentage
of equity
atfributable to
the Company
e
2013 2012
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
90 90
90 90
100 100
100 100

F£4% 2012/2013

Principal activities

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

BEVE
Property holding

RERK
Invesiment holding
RERR
Invesiment holding
REEK
Investment holding

REZK

Invesiment holding

MERR

Property development

RERK

Investment holding

BAEKR

Invesiment holding
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18. MIBARER(Z)

TEMBLRFENT : (&)

=4

Name

REBBRR(MiL2)
Sparkle Key Limited (nofe 2)

RARWE(ER)BERAR
(Biiz2 - 4%6)

Tysan Land (Shenyang) Limited
(notes 2. 4 and &)

RIBME(LE)FERAF
(B2 R5)

Tysan Land (Shanghai) Limited
[nofes 2 and 5)

FATRBHERARHZ2)

Tysan Engineering Company Limited fnofe 2/

RATR(BE)BBRAR(M#H2)

Tysan Engineering (H.K.) Company Limited

[note 2)

ZRBRBRAR Mt 2)

China Garden Infernational Limited fnote 2)

Allbright Investment limited (4772 2)
[note 2)

lronwood Pacific Limited (A7:%2)
[note 2)
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

AL,
Sk EFnH
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

&g
Hong Kong

hE,/
B

PRC/

Mainland China

HE/
A

PRC/

Mainland China

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

KRR ZHS
BVI

RERZES
BV

2ETR
HrEMmBA/
BAEE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

@ik 10,000% T
Ordinary
HK$10,000

58,300,000 %7T
(ZT—=F:
40,000,000%7T)
US$58,300,000
(2012:
US$40,000,000)

20,500,000% 7T
US$20,500,000

Rl
10,0007%7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000

LR
20,600,000 7T
Ordinary
HK$20,600,000

TR 10078 T
Ordinary HK$ 100
@R 100ET
Ordinary US$100

L@k 100%T
Ordinary US$100

KRFELS
ZBERADL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
e
2013 2012
97 97
97 97
100 100
70 70
70 70
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

BEEK

Investment holding

NEER
Property
development

MEER

Property
development

RALR

Investment holding

REBHK
RS

Provision of
electrical and
mechanical services

RERKR
Investment holding

BEEK

Invesiment holding

REEK

Invesment holding



18. MIBLREER(E)

TEMBARFENT : (&)

4

Name

Federated Resources Limited (A% 2)
[note 2)

Beneficial Enterprises Limited (42 2)
[note 2)

IRBEBRAR(HZ2)
Red Shine Investment Limited (nofe 2)

BRRERRAR(MZ2)

Hiat Investment Limited fnote 2)

ENRBRRB(HZ2)
Carriway Limited fnofe 2/

BREABRDR(AE2)
Fund House Limited (note 2/

BERmFEE(LS)
BRAR(MZE2R4)

Duncan Property Management (Shanghai)

Company limited (nofes 2 and 4]

HEERRRFEE
RBEREBRAR(HE2K4)

Shanghai China Garden Infernational

o
ERgMBERARAD
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

AL,
ke xmE
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

RRELRS
BVI

RERLES
BVI

30
Hong Kong
00
Hong Kong
Bt
Hong Kong
Bt
Hong Kong

i/
REIAH

PRC/

Mainland China

E/
FEA
PRC/

Real Estate Development & Management Mainland China

Compoany limited (nofes 2 and 4)

EBTR
BrEmBRE/
RAHE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

EEAT 100ET
Ordinary US$100
EEAT 100ET
Ordinary US$100
LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2
LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2
LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2
LB 2T
Ordinary HK$2

500,000 7T
US$500,000

5,000,000% 7T
US$5,000,000

ENNGI) S
ZBREEDL
Percentage
of equity
aftributable fo TEER
the Company Principal activities
“E2-Zf -T—F
2013 2012
100 100 REER
Investment holding
100 100 REER
Invesiment holding
100 100 REZR
Invesiment holding
100 100 NERE
Property investment
100 100 REER
Invesiment holding
100 100 REER
Invesiment holding
100 100 NEER
Property
management
100 100 NERE
Property
investment
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18. MIBLD B (E)

TEMBAREBOT : (£)

=4

Name

LEREBERUME

FMBELEBRAR(HiZ2K4)
Shanghai Changning Duncan Property

Development Company Limited

(notes 2 and 4)

LBESEHELN
BRAR(MZE2RS)

Shanghai Duncan Property Consulting
Company Limited fnofes 2 and 5)

Annual Report 2012/2013

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

AL,
Sk EFnH
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

HE/
R

PRC/

Mainland China

HE/
B

PRC/

Mainland China

2ETR
HrEMmBA/
BAEE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

10,000,000 7T
US$10,000,000

100,000 7T
US$100,000

NGl S
ZBREBDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable o TEXEB
the Company Principal activities
—E-ZF —F——F
2013 2012
100 100 NERER
Property
development
100 100 RRitmE
A IR
Provision of
property

consultancy services



18.

B8 A B (42)

Hi

1.

ZARBRARA (BB EBRERA
AR N ARAME(EE)ER AT
BT —FNAZ+-HABER-

HRMELAREA o

BEBRMDEBEERKRE(REAL
AHYIKEE ZEFER 10 1@/%75
ZIEMPRERREFSEZBXIK
BZBEFRFREERI) - TREE
RBRRAE LRE - MARNBRKE
RWEBERRE 2 EABHRZER
MZERBARIN EZ AR ER
BB AMERERBEE KR ERE
BIRED R 10,0008 7T)

ZEERDREFREZEZEMBING
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Nofes:

1.

Its name was changed from Tysan (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited to Tysan
Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited effective on 22 August 2012.

Held through subsidiaries.

The deferred shares carry no rights fo dividends [other than a fixed
non-cumulafive dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial
year during which the net profit of the relevant company available for
dividends exceeds HK$1 billion), no rights to vote at general meefings,
no rights fo receive any surplus on a retumn of capital on @ winding-up
[other than the amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders
of the ordinary shares of that company have been distributed in such a
winding-up of a sum of HK$1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary
share).

These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the PRC law.

These entities are registered as Sinoforeign joint ventures under the PRC
law.

In last year, the board of directors authorised o increase ifs registered
capital from US$40,000,000 to US$58,300,000 for financing the
construction works relating to properties under development in Shenyang,
the PRC. Accordingly, the Group had authorised but not contracted
for commitments in respect of capital contributions to the subsidiary
amounting to approximately HK$142,740,000 as at 31 March 2012.
The registered capifal was fully paid during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assefs of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.
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19. BEQRERERRE —BHER 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN

AZEX ASSOCIATE
&8
GROUP
ZEBE-ZfF —E——-F
(a) (a) 2013 2012
FEr FET
HK$000 HK$000

EIEEESE Share of net assets 37,595 31,083

N G Amounts due from associates 2,464 2,082

NI WA= 6 Loans fo associates 8,150 8,150

48,209 41,315

B ORE Less: Impairment (349 [ 337

47,860 40,978
BERAR I RRBEERR 28 The amounts due from associates and loans to associates are
R AE[EE R R o unsecured, interestfree and have no fixed terms of repayment.

b ®BE-—RHBLEARZEXR® (b)  The loan from an associate included in the Group's non-current
REAEBZIERBEES liabilities of HK$24,560,000 (2012: HK$24,560,000) is
24,560,000 T(ZF— 45 : unsecured, interestfree and will not be repayable within 12
24,560,000/87T) « AEER - months from 31 March 2013
SEREEE-_T—=F=A
=t—HB+-EAAANEE-

() ZAEERKHEDRE SRS [c]  The Group's frade receivable balances with the associates are
RO IS SRR 5T 24 BB o disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.
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BENRERRRE —HBER 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN

BAZERE) ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)
d  FBEHBENRZFBOT : (d)  Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:
AEEEN
e 81T FRERBEDL
RIDFHEREE Percentage
Particulars of ownership
and nominal  FEREZIHEE interest TEXEK
=L value of issued Place of  attributable Principal
Name shares held incorporation  to the Group activities
NEREBR AT B B 5 50 REER
Turbo Dragon Investment HE1ET Hong Kong Investment holding
Limited Ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
RARETREARA B @A B0 49 RAETR
((RARE I'&J) HE1ET Hong Kong BETR
Tysan Building Consruction Ordinary shares Provision of building
Company Limited [“TBC") of HK$1 each and construction works
BRARECRP)BERRT BT BR di 49 RAETR
Mac Tysan Consruction HE1RMT Macau BETR
(Macau) Limited Ordinary shares Provision of building
of MOP1 each and consfruction works
FATIERABRAF BT AR 0 49 REHEFR
Tysan Project Management HE AT Hong Kong BETIR
Limited Ordinary shares Provision of building
of HK$ 1 each and construction works
ZAEHERLTA BREBR 0 40 —REH
(E3-l) HEAT Hong Kong General frading
Tysan Trading Company Ordinary shares
Limited (“TTCL") of HK$1 each
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1%

BeENAEakRE —EHER
Bl2ER(E)

(d)

TREEREZFHEWNT : (&)

FRINMEZRRIEVELRE
B2 B B R 4G i A SR RS
SEMEBELRABIERL
AEBEBENA - EERR &
SIEMBE ARG S AT BN
Tk

TRIT RS AR ERE AT
BTSRRI E -

20. RAVESABRZRE
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19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(d)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: [Cont'd)

The above fable lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, affected the Group's share of profits
of the associates or formed a substantial portion of the Group's
interests in associates. To give defails of other associates would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of the Group's associates extracted from their financial statements:

REB LT ZBNKRE  RAFE

REERM I ETRERS -
AFIE

PR —E—=ZFF-_F——F=A
=+—AZREEIAIFEEERS
RBEERE  FEMBREEER

—=FHARH -

Annual Report 2012/2013

—E-=F ZZT——F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Assefs 192,239 163,008
Liabilities 109,957 95,033
Revenue 506,373 255,952
Profits 13,987 11,378
20. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS
58
GROUP
—B-ZF ZE——-F
2013 2012
FEE  FER
HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity invesiments in Hong Kong,
at fair value 3,838 3,282
Unlisted investment funds in Mainland Ching,
at fair value 268,535 —
272,373 3,282

The above invesiments at 31 March 2013 and 2012 were classified
as held for trading. Subsequent fo the end of the reporting period, the

unlisted investment funds was matured in April 2013.
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. B8 21. INVENTORIES
&8
GROUP
—E-=F ZZT——F
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$000 HK$'000
B Raw materials 5,570 11,123
T REM Spare parts and others 9,594 10,265
15,164 21,388
. HEHEE Y= 22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
£
GROUP
—T—=F =&
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
1 At beginning of year 466,250 439,569
R AERTYEMT16) Transfer from properties under development
(note 16) 596,385 28,053
EREME  BBREEMEE14)  Tonsfer to property, plant and equipment
(note 14) (2,032) =
FRALEZME Properties sold during the year (341,014 (16,774)
EE 5% 8% Exchange realignment 1,013 15,402
F4R At end of year 720,600 466,250
NEFESGHBE ZMEMRRBE AN The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China
MARBEOES - and are held under long term leases.
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23. BEEYN 23. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
&8
GROUP
—B-=F —E2—-fF
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$000
BEFPEBEHNIR IR Amounts due from customers for contract works 99,643 147,416
REFHBEHNIR A Amounts due to customers for contract works (528,161) (184,099

(428,518) [ 36,683

PREEHE 2 & KB B E AR F 3 Contract costs incurred plus recognised
BHEBREMREEREBE profits less recognised losses to date 7,572,655 5,446,589
B Bk EUGEE BRI less: Progress billings received and receivable (8,001,173) (5,483,272)

(428,518) [ 36,683
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24. FEWE SR 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
AEBRBEAMITEZEF T EER The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
R-BTEHEPZTH—REED standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo frade customers
A0 B A(EUIRE 2 BIN) - HEK other than for refention receivables are within 90 days, and are subject
BREEL TP - BERN LA fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
RASBZ BB SHERERETRE the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate o a large number of
FEE SHECERRBNED 2B diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Mo REB B A FETFRA ERHE The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
REEEEMEE - BKEBESEREFTEH over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
2B e bearing.
&8
GROUP

—B-ZF —EZ——F

2013 2012

FET &L

HK$000 HK$ 000

FEWE 5 RN Trade receivables 743,938 432,994
BE Impairment (8,876) (2,922

735,062 430,072
JEWE 5 AR 2 B35 E W Bt 2 1 Al Included in the trade receivables are amounts due from an associate
618,000 T(Z T — = &F: of HK$618,000 (2012: HK$4,869,000), which are repayable on
4,869,000 7T) - HEFEEFRHE similar credit terms to those offered to the major customers of the Group.

BT AEETIREPHETIES -

NEZRHRBEFESE  BRES An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
ERRRERARZFRITOT period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:
]
GROUP
ZB-=ZF —EZ——F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
W E 5B Trade receivables:
Q0HA Within 90 days 456,725 267,116
Q1HZE180H 91 1o 180 days 751 1,209
181HZE360H 181 to 360 days 14,105 3,149
360RM £ Over 360 days 194 1,830
471,775 273,304
FEMIRE S Retention receivables 263,287 156,768

735,062 430,072
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24, BRESRRE)

FKE ZRFBERB 2 ZBNT

=)

BRI EEE (ME7)
HisH A AT EL 2 50R
BE 5 %

FiR

AAALRENE ZRRAERE
48,876,000 (= T — = &F:
2,922,000 7T ) =254 B 5l e K E 5 Bk
MR R RIBRE BB & 8,876,000 %
TT(ZT—Z%F : 8,766,000/&7T) ° f&
R 2B W E 5 R R B S PR &
ZEFARE  BHRUZEER ZRR
TeER R
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24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

£

GROUP
—BE-=F —E——fF
2013 2012
FET THET
HK$000 HK$'000
At beginning of year 2,922 30
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 5,842 2,876
Amount written off as uncollectible — (30)
Exchange realignment 112 46
At end of year 8,876 2,022

Included in the above provision for impairment of frade receivables of
HK$8,876,000 (2012: HK$2,922,000) is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount before
provision of HK$8,876,000 (2012: HK$8,766,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not expected fo
be fully recoverable.
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. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The aged analysis of the frade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered fo be impaired is as follows:

&8

GROUP
—B-=F —T-CF
2013 2012
FAET FAET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 720,012 422,504
1 to 90 days past due 751 1,209
91 to 270 days past due 14,105 232
More than 270 days past due 194 283

735,062 424,228

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relafe to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable.
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25. HMEWFIE - BARIERET £ 25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

58 NG
GROUP COMPANY
—E-=F —EF-——-—F CZEBE-=ZF —ZT-—-F
2013 2012 2013 2012

FET FEr FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

H b e RIA Other receivables 20,601 21,452 — —
B Impairment (2,000 = — —
18,601 21,452 - -
BNFIERT S Prepayments and deposits 31,631 41,124 3,039 220
50,232 62,576 3,039 220
Hin BRI ERE 2 ZBmT The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as
follows:
58
GROUP
—E-=F —ET——F
2013 2012
FET T
HK$000 HK$ 000
F4 At beginning of year - -
BHERREERE(HE7) Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 2,000 -
FR At end of year 2,000 -
%22 EURE 220000008 T(ZE Except for other receivables of HK$2,000,000 (2012: Nil) which was
——F @) H i EEsN - Pt fully impaired, none of the above assets is either past due or impaired
EVEAHgRE  mitA gl and the financial assets included in the above balances relate to
& BhE BRI R Y I A0 8 2 TR receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
ER -

122  Annual Report 2012,/2013



o
ERgMBERARAD

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —2—=%=A=1+—H

26. PTEERIE 26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ZH GROUP
—B-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BE =L BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

FET FET TET TAET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

RHASNE RETRBHEIE  Forward currency accumulators - - 110 140
st Interest rate swaps = 8,205 — 11,006
— 8,205 110 11,146

S AIEREMELS © Portion classified as non-current:

=4 HA Interest rate swaps - (8,209) = (11,000)
ENERED 7> Current portion - - 110 140
KNEBB TV %R HINE 257 EH The Group has entered into various forward currency accumulators
BEHRFEEE - LB EINE RE contracts and inferest rate swaps to manage its foreign currency and
AR ZFREIESHTIEET exchange rate exposures. These forward currency contracts are not
AYHRR WEAFEFAEBR designated for hedge purposes and are measured at fair value through
FEUNTETAZ AT FERZH R profit or loss. Changes in the fair value, net, of non-hedging derivatives
28310008 (—E——%: BA amounting to gain of HK$2,831,000 (2012: loss of HK$5,276,000)
5,276,000&7C) HEt AF Az Bk were credited fo the income statement during the year. The carrying
NezEZemIAZREEREATE amounts of those financial insfruments are the same as their fair values.
BE - FfTHESRIARMSS 5 E The above fransactions involving derivative financial instruments are
EERFRRMYEENRET 2 SR conducted with creditworthy financial institufions with no recent hisfory
T o of default.
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27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND

RESTRICTED CASH

Time deposits:
— other time deposits
— sfructured deposits

Total time deposits
Cash and bank balances
Restricted cash

Total

Denominated in:

Japanese Yen ["YEN")
United States dollar {"USD”)
Euro ("EUR")

Macao patacas (‘MOP’)
Renminbi ("RMB’)

HK$

Hiat
Notes

(a)

(b)

(a)

[c)

e

GROUP
—B-=F —ZT——fF
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
429,662 134,238
99,920 74,010
529,582 208,248
488,870 275,816
60,207 79,621
1,078,659 563,685

&8

GROUP
—B-=F —ZZ——F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
7 i
77,683 1,409
17,042 5,090
43,453 407
362,188 414,737
578,286 142,042
1,078,659 563,685
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Setflement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Nofes:

(a)  Cash at banks eams inferest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between seven days
and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn inferest at the respective time deposit rafes. The bank
balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

(b)  The structured deposits are time deposits with fixed maturity dates and
are stated at amortised cost. The inferest rates on the structured deposits
fluctuated based on changes in currency exchange rafe between USD
and HK$. The Group uses structured deposits primarily to enhance the
refurn on investment.

[c)  Pursuant fo relevant regulations in the PRC, deposits of HK$60,207,000
[2012: HK$17,946,000) received from the pre-sale of properties under
development under designated bank accounts can only be used for
the consfruction of the relevant properties. As at 31 March 2012, the
remaining balance of the restricted cash of HK$61,675,000 represented
a fime deposit maintained in an escrow bank account pursuant fo the
terms of the Group's banking facilities.
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28.

2
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DERGHEZFRDEE

RZE——F+_A+H AEEH
—HBUE=NFLEAEE RS -
PA#2 3 & R {8 315,000,000 7T i &
—EERYNEENEBEFBEE2S
WEEPLINEBEE) REE-T
——H=A=1+—-BLFERXN 2%
31,500,000 T2 KE °

REEEMBRELENESR A&
B BR [ {8 /& 120,794,000 JT(Kf =%
1HZERYRCENDPBRFHE
ZHERBDEE-BE_T—_F=H
=t—B ZERANXEERT X
RITERARTAREZRITRECH
B E32) - BE-_T—=%F=H
=t BLEFEE HEExK - kR
2,334,000 B TR HKAE - ERRA
191,872,000 % T °

B & 5 BRI ERTRIR

28.

29.

NBZEAFE  EBNESERFAREH

RZEROIT :

ENE SRS : Trade payables:
30BA Within 30 days
31HZEQ0H 31 to 90 days
Q1H=Z180H 91 to 180 days
180HM £ Over 180 days

FEfHRE S Refention payables

FERT /I8 Accruals

ERESEFHAERE  —REFHA

N+H-
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NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 7 December 2011, the Group entered info a formal sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose of an
owneroccupied property being the whole floor of 11th Floor, Harbour
Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong af a total cash
consideration of HK$315,000,000. Deposits of HK$3 1,500,000
were received during the year ended 31 March 2012,

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the owner-occupied property with a
carrying amount of HK$120,794,000 of the Group (note 14), was
reclassified as non-current asset held for sale. As at 31 March 2012,
the owner-occupied property was pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group [note 32). During the year
ended 31 March 2013, the disposal was complefed. After deducting
fransaction costs of HK$2,334,000, net gain of HK$191,872,000

was resulted.

TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An aged analysis of the frade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

£ NF]

GROUP COMPANY
—E—=F —T-——F =ZE-=F —ZET-——-F
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
214,364 167,274 897 848
2,719 21,341 - —
224 1,193 - —
4,190 1,358 - -
221,497 191,166 897 848
79,759 58,314 — —
337,211 236,400 3,618 771
638,467 485,880 4,515 1,619

The trade payables are noninterestbearing and are normally setiled on
90-day terms.
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OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS
IN ADVANCE

Other payables are non-inferestbearing and have an average ferm of
one month.

As at 31 March 2013, included in other payables, deposits received
and receipts in advance of the Group and the Company are deposits
of HK$6,000,000 received from Fortunate Pool Limited (“Fortunate
Pool”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor (*Mr.
Fung”], a director of the Company, for the proposed disposal of 40%
equily inferest in Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Proposed
Disposal’) pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase agreement
dated 12 November 2012 and the supplemental agreement dated
21 December 2012 entered info between the Company and Fortunate
Pool.

legal proceedings were issued by one of the directors, Mr. David
Chien, against other directors of the Company [excluding Mr. Fung
and Mr. i Kit Chee) [the “Relevant Directors") (the “Directors’ Legal
Proceedings”). In the Directors’ legal Proceedings, Mr. David Chien
sought an inferim injunction from the High Court of Hong Kong (the “High
Court”) to restrain the Relevant Directors, whether by themselves or their
servants or agents, from directly or indirectly engaging in any act or
conduct to perform or further the performance of the Proposed Disposal.
The Directors’ legal Proceedings were heard and a writfen decision
of the High Court in the Directors’ legal Proceedings (the “Order/
Decision”] was handed down on 7 June 2013 granting an injunction
o restrain the Relevant Directors, whether by themselves or their servants
or agents, from directly or indirectly engaging in any act or conduct fo
secure the completion of the Proposed Disposal until defermination of the
Section 168BC Application (as defined below), or until further order.

In light of the Order/Decision, the Company has been informed by the
Relevant Directors that they are seeking legal advice as fo the Order/
Decision. Pursuant to the Order/Decision and the injunction order
granted, the Company will further decide on whether or how to proceed
with the Proposed Disposal depending on and after the judgment in the
Section 168BC Application or any further order.

F£4% 2012/2013
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30. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS

31.

IN'ADVANCE (Cont'd)

On 22 April 2013, Mr. David Chien issued legal proceedings in
the High Court under Action No. HCMP 841 of 2013 by way of
an originating summons in which he named the Company as the
respondent and applied for orders or relief pursuant to Section 168BC
of the Companies Ordinance (the “Section 168BC Application”] from
the High Court for permission to Mr. David Chien to bring an action
on behalf of the Company against all the Relevant Directors, Mr. Fung
and Fortunate Pool and/or such other persons against whom the said
proceedings ought fo be brought under Section 168BC|[1) of the
Companies Ordinance, together with the costs thereof.

On 17 June 2013, the hearing of the Section 168BC Application was
fixed by the High Court fo take place on 18 December 2013. Unless
otherwise ordered by the High Court upon the determination of the
Section 168BC Application, the Company confinues fo function through
its board of direcfors.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

As at 31 March 2013, deposits received represented down payment
received from customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of
properties under development and sale contracts of properties held
for sale of the Group. The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties
when they were sfill under development. As confracted with customers,
deposits were paid to the Group upon the signing of the pre-sale
contracts. Such amounts held by the Group are non-interestbearing.
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32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
GROUP
“B-Z£=A=t-A “F-—f#-A=t-H
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
BB ER
= H=
Effective Effective
interest rafe HR TET  interest rote HR TET
(%)  Maturity  HK$'000 (%) Maturty - HK$'000
Unsecured:
Bank loans 1.43.4 20132017 720,636 1.53.3 20122016 428,125
Secured:
Bank loans 1.72.7 20132017 20,174 1.8 20122014 8,625
Instalment loans 1.7 20132031 95,018 0917 20122031 161,528
115,192 170,153
Total bank borrowings 835,828 598,278

Analysed into:
Bank borrowings repayable:

In the second year

Beyond five years

Portion due within one year,
classified as current liabilities

Long term portion

Within one year or on demand

In the third fo fifth years, inclusive

—E-=F ZZE—-F

2013 2012
FiE FErT
HK$000 HK$'000
109,786 231,452
235,301 96,980
417,802 176,503
72,939 93,343
835,828 508,278
(109,786)  [231,452)
726,042 366,826
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32. MERITRBE(E)

g EADNNE ARERSAIREER
RERIGERZIRITER 16,929,000
TL(ZF—_%F :7,553,000/&7T)E 5t
AREK BIRITIER - YA AR—F
ARIZEREE 2 RN RITEN -

RBRTERZEIHER - HERTT
SRCEEEEER: RZT—=F
E—E——H=ZR=+—B2BR—
FRHIEZ K 292,857,000
BT & 223,800000% T R &
—ZER-_T--_F#ZA=+—-HZ
BB — F 42 242,290,0005% 7T
} 101,384,000 L R=—F—=4F
E—_T——HE=ZR=+—-B2BRE
“EEERF(BREREME)XNZ
427742,000% T & 179,652,000
BT RZE—=FRZT—ZF=
A=Z+—BZERAFENEEZHFHZ
72,939, 000787t K& 93,343,000 7T °

R-E—=6=ZA=+—H ' ~&£H
ZERBTEEDBAEERNRSEH
K2 BEMEED A 4210,056,000%
T(ZE— Z%F: 221,136,000 7))
22,530,000% (= & — = &F:
20,350,000 L) 2 L R EF - &
e R (KT 14) RIRE W % (K &
IS EEIR o o RZFE—ZF=H
=+—8 AEE-EHEFRITE
BEYHEEES 120,794,000 w25
BARAFLEZERDEEEREMNE
28) o
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32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group's bank loans in the
amount of HK$16,929,000 (2012: HK$7,553,000) containing
a repayment on demand clause are included within current inferest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed info bank loans payable within
one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of the bank loans are: HK$92,857,000 and
HK$223,899,000 payable within one year or on demand as at
31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively; HK$242,290,000 and
HK$101,384,000 payable in the second year as at 31 March 2013
and 2012, respectively; HK$427,742,000 and HK$179,652,000
payable in the third o fifth years, inclusive as at 31 March 2013 and
2012, respectively: HK$72,939,000 and HK$93,343,000 payable
beyond five years as at 31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's secured bank borrowings were
secured by cerfain of its land and buildings, equipment and machinery
(nofe 14) and investment properies (note 15 with carrying amounts of
HK$210,056,000 (2012: HK$221,136,000) and HK$22,530,000
(2012: HK$20,350,000), respectively. In addition, as at 31 March
2012, a Group's secured bank borrowing was secured by a non-
current asset classified as held for sale with carrying amount of

HK$120,794,000 (note 28).
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32. MERITEBEE) 32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)
AEE EEARITHEE 1,353,000 The Group's unsecured bank borrowing amounting to HK$ 11,353,000
BI(ZE— % 18,157,000/ 1) (2012: HK$18,157,000] is guaranteed by the government of the
TR BB RITTREBFRAER o Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
AN ARBIEHEETHB AR R — In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
RIS N ARS8 B RVE & RR borrowing facilities granted to certain of its subsidiaries and an
(BM5E39) - associate (note 39).
AEBEMARTEEHRI DMK All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear inferest at floating inferest
B RITEEZREEREE N FEH rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate fo their
A o fair values.
AEENZREERBM ZRITRER The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings denominated in
HENT - various currencies are as follows:
—EBE-=F Z—ZT——F
2013 2012
FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT HK$ 835,828 571,948
BT Euro — 7.770
b Japanese Yen — 18,560
835,828 598,278
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33. EELEBIIE 33. DEFERRED TAX
RAFERN  BERBRREREELE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assefs during the year are
BT as follows:
BEEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities
%5 GROUP
)
HBHAE
Bl wER?
BEME Allowance in
Revaluation excess B
of investment of related ~ Withholding s
properties  depreciation taxes Total
FET T FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(E31) (&E5)
[Restated) [Restated)
RZZE——FMA—HB At Apil 2011 (73,033 (16,892 (103,975) (193,900]
FRARBRERTA Deferred tax credited/
(k) 2B (charged| to the income
HE(PEE10) statement during the
year (nofe 10} (7,320) (4,142) 7,675 (3,787)
B 5 382 Exchange realignment (3,150) = (7,874] (11,024)
RZE——F At 31 March 2012 and
ZRA=+t—RBk 1 Apiil 2012
—E-_FMA—H (83,503) (21,034)  [104,174]  (208,711)
FRARERERA Deferred tax credited/
() Z (charged] to the income
ERERE (M 10) statement during the
year (note 10) (7,343 3,924 691 (2,728)
AP EIAM—K Withholding tax paid
BB A AIE S on repafriation of
Z BRIt eamings from a subsidiary
Z TN in Mainland China = = 1,249 1,249
b 5 SR Exchange realignment (1,197 = (1,301) (2,498)
RZE—=F At 31 March 2013
=A=+—H (92,043) (17,110)  [103,535]  (212,688)
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33. EEMIA(E) 33. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)
RAFER  BERBEEREEZE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assefs during the year are
BT : () as follows: [Contd)
BREFHEEE Deferred tax assets
%8 GROUP
+ B
BE
Provision
of land
appreciation
tax
FAT
HK$ 000
RZZE——FMA—A At T April 2011 100,146
FARNERRR Deferred tax charged fo the income statement
ZERERIA(FIEE10) during the year [nofe 10} (3,982)
B G E Exchange realignment 3,816
R_F——F=A=1—H
kZT——FMA—H At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 99,980
FARBRRE Deferred tax charged to the income sfatement
ZEREBIA(EE10) during the year [note 10) (15,537)
b 5 SRR Exchange realignment 1,058
—E-=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2013 85,501
REEBREBELEZREEBEA The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$255,622,000
255,622,000 (= & — = &F: (2012: HK$226,830,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
226,830,000 ) + A] FA{EMR R HR4K against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
HIIREE 2 AR RRERTIEF o arose. Deferred fox assets have not been recognised in respect of these
RMELERZMBARIMEL 2 ZF losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been lossmaking for
BRANSERRELERREE - B some fime and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
JERBLEF AR R E R IEEEHRIET available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
AJRE -
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") Llaw, a 10% withholding
fox is levied on dividends declared to foreign invesfors from the foreign
invesiment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding fax rate may be applied if there
is a tax freaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by ifs subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
—E—=F —T—-F
2013 2012
FiE FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
872,665,903 (2012: 872,665,903)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
87,266 87,266

During the year ended 31 March 2012, 2,550,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued for cash at a subscription price of HK$0.82
per share pursuant to the exercise of the Company's share options for
a fotal cash consideration, before expenses of HK$2,091,000. An
amount of HK$856,000 was transferred from the share option reserve

o the share premium account upon the exercise of the share opfions.

Share options

Defails of the Company's share option schemes are included in note 35

to the financial statements.
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135



.'H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

136

5. lBRiEsTEl

R-ZZEZE-_FENA=Z+N\B  ARAEHK
M—IREREEI([EEEl]) - mAXR
SERKNEEELHERZAER2EE
REREREER - EFTEIEHKR LN
RZZ——FNANABITZREES
REEREA BB REBI([ 5t
Z DR - EFrEIR IR - TERIL
BRI EERE - &S 2B
FTEEMAEDABR - MK LERIER
B2 EAEREDRER S - WARRE
BITE TLATTE ©

B AAERFIRIBERT 8 AR IR 2
ATEBRERSHE - AT GHB
ARREMERE BTG 2 10%

Annual Report 2012/2013

W% 3 % W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —Z2—=#=A=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 28 August 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Old Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
fo eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The Old Scheme was terminated and replaced by a new
share option scheme with effect from the conclusion of the special
general meeting held on 8 August 2012 (the “New Scheme”). Upon
termination of the Old Scheme, no further options can be granted
thereunder but in all other respects, the provisions of the Old Scheme
shall remain in force and any options granted prior fo the termination
shall continue fo be valid and exercisable in accordance therewith.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
fo be granted under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any

time.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

A summary of the share option schemes of the Company is as follows:

Eital
Old Scheme

$st )

New Scheme

El:y

Purpose

BBAEERZEERNERALFA
BRRELRERE - RAKERESD
FERELENRERMER AR
AEBKR -

To encourage eligible participants
to perform their best in achieving
the goals of the Company while at
the same time allow them to share
the fruits of the Company's business
achieved through their effort and
confribution.

FEFE((EFg )BUREEBR
BURBDEES2EA/SHIE
HARRAR,/ IAREEMHEA
Al([FHEAR ) R/ AR B ER
X B R B R A AR AR ([ RA
BE2ERNERCER  BRK
BREEMIAERZAERE2AE
% BB ER2EEBRMEN
ERASECBR  UFEALT
RARBIBIR 2 BN R
RERERBEEDZTEIELS
NERERMERZ AR B EBK
R BLEEGUREFHEREN
RASERERE LB BRI
nEBECSEXES -

To enable the board of directors
(the “Board”] to grant options to
reward eligible participants who, in
the sole and absolute opinion of the
Board, would contribute or benefit
or had contributed or benefited
fo the business, development and
growth (and any other aspect
whatsoever) of the Company and/or
any of the Company's subsidiaries
("Subsidiaries”), and/or any of the
entities in which any member of the
Group holds any equity inferest,
and to provide incentives fo eligible
participants to perform their best in
achieving the goals of the Group
in the interests and benefits of the
Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole, while at
the same time allowing the eligible
participants to share the fruits of
the Company's business achieved
through their effort and confribution,
as well as to enable the Group fo
recruit high quality employees who
are valuable to the management
and long term business and financial
goals and success of the Group.

F£4% 2012/2013
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35. BRMERTEI(E)

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

Eital
Old Scheme

¥ratdl

New Scheme

RERSEE
Eligible Participants

Annual Report 2012/2013

ARARIFEEAMBARIZEES
TTHABHES -

Employees or executives or directors
O{: the COmpOny or any Of its
subsidiaries.

B2 EHHE 2 AL BIALT
LI E A A S B B 2 (]
FREFBES  THAER &R
BEIER(BEHT  FHRTR
BUFNMTER)LEFTSL2RER
AREHKEHARE R,/ HEM
MEBRER, REMEEEY
% BRRER(REMEMS
H)B BB R 2 AEEEAH
BE - BAA BRE - REA#
FEEREEAGINER - BE &
Wes - MEERS)  BF - 2
B EBHMBRAERHY -

A person who is entitled to
participate in the New Scheme,
being any full-time or part-time
employees, executives, officers or
directors (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company
or any of the Subsidiaries or any
of the Interested Entities and any
contractors, advisors, consultants,
agents, suppliers or providers (of,
for example, goods, plants and
machineries, materials or services),
customers, distributors, business
ally or joint venture partners of
the Group who, in the sole and
absolute opinion of the Board,
will contribute or benefit or have
contributed or benefited to the
business, development and growth
(and any other aspect whatsoever]
of the Company and/or any of
the Subsidiaries and/or any of the
Interested Entities.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

EitEl HEtEl

Old Scheme New Scheme
A PRI ERREZE LR i 87,266,590/ iz & B #17h%
FIRBERAREBBTRA Nil. RzZ10% GrEEEERNARRR
2B REHASHHA-_ZT——FN\A

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue and
the percentage of the issued
share capital that i represents
as at the date of the annual
report

BH2EE /Rl
Maximum entiflement of each

participant

BEBREVARBESTZ
HAPR

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

RITER AR ABREZ
RIEHIR

Minimum period for which an
opfion must be held before it
can be exercised

RN R 5R

Amount payable on acceptance

TMERBNEMI12EABREL
AR BETRARZ 1%

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

REFETRNEGEARA A
REFAIBER T NERNRKLERES
RE+5R  XBBRENRLZ
{ERSCATARIR o

Determined and notified by the
directors to each grantee, but shall
end in any event not lafer than fen
years from the date of the grant of
options subject to the provisions for
early fermination thereof.

HESETRENEHEN KNG
l:':l °

To be determined by the directors
and included in the relevant offer
letters.

i
Nil.

NB2872,665,903ME &1k
f3) o

87,266,590 ordinary shares and
10% of the issued share capital,
on the basis of 872,665,903
shares in issue as at the date of the
Company's special general meefing

on 8 August 2012.

TMEHEBAER 1 218 A BRA LR
BETIRAZ1%

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

BehEESRTBENENEE
ERBEHGtE 2 ERA - M
MER 2 B E SRR R LA R
FBIRIEE BReETTFA -

To be determined by the Board on
a casefocase basis at its absolute
discrefion and nofified fo the granfee
thereof, provided that the expiry date
of the said period shall not be later
than ten years from the date of grant
of the option concerned.

BHEZCRBET -
To be determined at the discretion of
the Board.

Nil.
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35. BRMERTEI(E)

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

Eital
Old Scheme

¥ratdl

New Scheme

BEITEECEE
Basis for deftermining the
exercise price

Annual Report 2012/2013

MERET  BUERUATZES
(B <EE : (| NBFRLE
BEER(WARERR)  EBR
FrEMERMRE B2 WmE : &
(iii) B X BB B H R R
B BB B RR TR
2 FHWTHE

Determined by the directors but must
be the highest of (i) the nominal
value of shares; [ii) the closing price
of the ordinary shares as sfated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a
business day; and (i) the average
closing price of the ordinary shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of options.

R ERREMS

In respect of any particular option:

()R EBARIER BN RAR &
B ER - MEFSLEEH
82 BRI DB RER AR T
BREERBERE MRE - TR
BAEORUTRERRSE

(i) the price per share payable to
the Company on the exercise of the
option as may be decided upon and
prescribed by the Board on a case-
fo-case basis, bearing in mind the
purpose of the New Scheme, in its
absolute discrefion upon the grant
of the option, provided that such
exercise price shall not be less than
the highest of the following:

o) BxfpzmEfE

(a] the nominal value of a share;

b BREKXLBEY (RREX
R) RERAZEAMERN
H BRIDTE - K

[b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; and
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

EitEl
Old Scheme

¥atdl

New Scheme

EETREZEEE)
Basis for determining the
exercise price (Contd)

A8z T
The remaining life of the
scheme

T BB TR A AR SR

RAg LRE 2R -

MEFEET  BUERATZES
(B2 HE : (| NBHERLE
BREEE(BWARERER) B
FrEBERMRE BIRZKHE &
(i) B2 42 4% o B A B B A L
B BRI B R TR
ZFWTHE -

Determined by the directors but must
be the highest of (i) the nominal
value of shares; (i) the closing price
of the ordinary shares as sfated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a
business day; and i) the average
closing price of the ordinary shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of options.

EtZiEen=-2——-F/N\ANHR
i BERBEERE 2K
2,000,000 & & 17 B A 17 2 B8 AR
BENTEHE/IN _T—=F1A
TARBESHZ AT °

The Old Scheme has been
terminated on 8 August 2012, but
under the provisions of the Old
Scheme, the exercise period for
the outstanding share options of
2,000,000 shares shall end on or
before 16 September 2013.

() BERBRERLBHMAMEE
RARBRAZERARERA
2 Bt FIaWH (B ¢ K

[c) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date
of grant of the option, or

(if) 45 A s P (3 (i) Pt ) 2 77 8
B(wiER) - TRAEESRENT
M AR (A BN & EERH
AEIRE 2 HBEEHERABITEE
ZHRBIDEERE o

(ii) where applicable, the exercise
price for the option concerned
(referred to (i) above] as may be
adjusted by the Board from time fo
time pursuant fo the rules of the New
Scheme conceming adjustments of,
infer alia, the exercise price upon
the occurrence of any relevant event
as defined in the New Scheme.

HEtEle =T ——F/\A B
TEREDABRAN —T-—F
NALHARE £ XERERE
JEm

The New Scheme remains in
force for a period of ten years
commencing from 8 August 2012
and expiring at the close of business
hours of the Company on 7 August
2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or

fo vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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35. BR#ETEI(E) 35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)
(a) EitZl (a) Old Scheme
FARBE B RARTEZ BR The following share options were outstanding under the Old
Bm Scheme during the year:
—EB-=F —E-fF
2013 2012
¥ ¥
TEE fEIRE 7B BERE
Weighted L] Weighted #A
average Number average Number
exercise price  of options exercise price of opfions
=354 F 57 T
BT ‘000 BT 000
HK$ HK$
per share per share
F19 At beginning of year 1.46 2,000 1.10 4,550
FRITE Exercised during the year - - 0.82 (2,550
F48 At end of year 1.46 2,000 1.46 2,000

RBERK - HARITEBREZ
TTEERITESREDT -

—E-=F —E——F
BREHE HEREHE
2013 2012
Number of Number of
options opfions

F F

‘000 ‘000

1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000
2,000 2,000

© BRIEZTERAR R
BETS AR TRADH (18
BB EHEE -
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The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as af the end of the reporting period are as follows:

1TfefE* 1T HAR

Exercise price* Exercise periods
ERET
HK$ per share

1.46 “T—FAATLHE

“E-=FNA+RH

1702011 to 1692013

1.46 —T-_FNATERE

ZE-=FNA+RH

1792012 to 1692013

1.46

The exercise price of the share options is subject fo adjusiment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company's share capital.



35. BRERTEI(E)

(o) EitE(#)

RBE_T——F=A=1+—H
EFEEREZBRECATFER
1,177 0008 T(EH 0.3 B TE
0468 7TT) AR AKERFR
EHEREBRER S 107,000 7T
(ZZ—ZF : 424,00087T) °

RNEZE-_T—=F=A=+—H
I FEDEBREETE - RE
EZE——F=ZRA=+—HLHF
FE1T{#2,550,00017 B IR E R
172,550,000 % & 1 & L @
B+ BA K 255,000 Jo TR AN I
1,836,000 AR5 1E (kR E
IRZA - FEER T REM
340

RBEHE - ARRIREBEERE
£2,000000H( =8 — = F:
2,000,00017 ) & AR i R AT
BEARABRITRALEE 20
M RITE 2 BREREIR
A &) %8 §) % 172,000,000 % (=
T — — 4 :2,000,0008% ) & @
P&+ BB AR AN & 200,000 T
(ZZ& — = % :200,000/% 7T )
R m s ENBRETRZA) A
27200008 T(Z T — ZF:
2,720,000/7T) °

RELEZFHHHRRER - RIE
E:tE - R27)%F 2,000,000
(ZZ—=%:2,000,00017 ) &
BRERATE  HARARIERE
BIIRGA0.2%(ZE—_%F:
0.2%) °
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

)

Old Scheme (Cont'd)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 March 2011 was HK$1,177,000 (HK$0.3 to HK$0.46
each), of which the Group recognised a share opfion expense of

HK$107,000 (2012: HK$424,000) during the year.

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
March 2013. The 2,550,000 share options exercised during the
year ended 31 March 2012 resulted in the issue of 2,550,000
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of
HK$255,000 and share premium of HK$1,836,000 (before
issue expenses), as further defailed in note 34 fo the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 2,000,000
(2012: 2,000,000 share opfions outstanding under the Old
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 2,000,000 (2012: 2,000,000) additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$200,000 (2012: HK$200,000) and share premium of
HK$2,720,000 (2012: HK$2,720,000) before issue expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 2,000,000 (2012: 2,000,000) share
options outstanding under the Old Scheme, which represented
approximately 0.2% (2012: 0.2%) of the Company's shares in
issue as af that date.
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35. BR#ETEI(E)

(b)  #Hatd

REBE-Z—=F=A=+—H
IEFE - ¥at8l T EEREE
B 176 BIESRR TRE
ERIRITEERBAHE -

36. f#fE

(a) %H
RAFERBEFEAEEFKE
BREHRET -

BREFIIEEERZBBEHR
BB - ARG B AR B A 2 Pl
AAZ B BN EERERTER
BRI
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

(6) New Scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2013, no share options were
granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there is no outstanding
share option under the New Scheme.

36. RESERVES

(a)  Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred
fo statutory reserves which are resfricted as 1o use.



36. f&E(E)

(b) 2 A]

W=E——FNA—H
REEEH

EREERELR

DARRHES I 2 SRR B X

TRk

“E-—FRERRENZ
RERE,

“E-CERA RS

RZE-—F=A=+—-H
k=F-—%MA-A
AEEER
ERZERXER
SABRES 2 B R

%~ FRERR2
KEHE

—E_=

— < =

Equityseffled share

2012 inferim dividend paid

Equityseffled share

IR 2 PHRE
A S =

2013 inerim dividend paid

At 31 March 2013
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36. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(b) Company

ERgMBERARAD

Total comprehensive

2011 final dvidend

At 31 March 2012 and

Total comprehensive

2012 final dividend

R RER BRERB

Share  HIAEE Share  REEA
it premium  Confributed option  Retained ac
Notes account surplus reserve profits Total
TET TET TAT TET &L
HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
557,630 29950 1,144 165270 753,994
= - - 90705 90,705
income for the year = = = 90,705 90,705
option arrangements - - 424 = 424
Exercise of share opfions 34, 35 2,692 = (856 = 1,836
declared and paid 12 = = = (34,891) (34,891
12 - - - (13,090, {13,090)
560,322 29,950 712 207994 798,978
- - - [10,208)  {10,208)
expense for the year = = = (10,208)  {10,208)
option arrangements - - 107 = 107
declored and paid 12 = = = (34,907)  (34,907)
12 - - - (17.453) (17,453
560,322 29,950 819 145426 736,517
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36. fEB(E)

(6]

R (#&)

RRARHABBERARBRN
LR RER—AN—F2&
BEHEMBAZMNBERRRND A
FEBHRBARACHETRN
ZHEZHE RE-NN\—F
BREDRE BEETHERT
AR A A LA R AR 2 TR
B

BE_T—=f=A=+—HIt
FEHEE10,208,0008 (=
T — Z F:4 M90,705,0007%8
L) BREERRENETHBLAF
FTHCER B i S 1A 110,800,000
AIT(ZT— 4% : 94,000,000
BIT) REWHTB A R RIEZR
5112218000 t(Z T —=
F - BERE17500087T) ©

37. REMNZH

e

TER A

AEERBELEHEOZH - UH
NEBNT=2=1"ER &
MEETH=(ME14) RERE
WE(HEE15) - HABR—RIT
ERBP RBRP X MERIT S R
RERERDRAERFELEERA

%o
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36. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(6) Company (Cont'd)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in 1991 prior fo the listing of the
Company's shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the Company may make distributions
fo its members out of the contributed surplus under certain

circumstances.

The loss of HK$ 10,208,000 for the year ended 31 March 2013
(2012: profit of HK$90,705,000) included dividend income
of HK$110,800,000 (2012: HK$94,000,000) received from
cerfain subsidiaries of the Company and impairment of amounts
due from subsidiaries of HK$ 112,218,000 (2012: write-back of
impairment of HK$175,000).

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  As lessor

The Group leases cerfain of its machinery (note 14) and
its investment properties (note 15) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for ferms ranging from three
fo thirty six months. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants and customers fo pay security deposits and provide
for periodic renfal adjustments according fo the then prevailing
market conditions.



37.

RERNZH(E)

(o) TERHIEA(E)

RBEHRR  AEEREREHE
PREPRL A HAEEH
AR A T F 8 2 KRR R R
THRBIT -

—FR
E_EFTF(BREREMSE)

(b) TEREEA

FEBRESEBOTS  E
WESNE=EL+=M@A - &
BETHAZNE HA BT
BERETHE -

RBEHR - AEBRETTH

HREHEORATFH 2 KRR
ERANTREENT

—FR
EF_EFTF(EREREMSE)

ARARRBERRY EEALE
BAORH(—E——F: &)

o
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)  As lessor (Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

&8

GROUP
—E—=F ZT—-F
2013 2012
FEr &L
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Within one year 12,158 19,036
In the second fo fifth years, inclusive 1,110 455
13,268 19,491

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for ferms ranging from three
fo seventy two months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had fotal future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

£8

GROUP
—E-=F —E—=—fF
2013 2012
FEr &L
HK$000 HK$ 000
Within one year 26,322 10,940
In the second o fifth years, inclusive 6,249 3,520
32,571 14,460

The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement at
the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).
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38. HAE&iE 38. COMMITMENTS
B SO E 37 (b) sl 2 45 2 A0 40 7 e In addition to the operating lease commitments defailed in note 37(b)
Oh - RREBK - AEEEA THIER above, the Group had the following capital commitments af the end of
AR the reporting period:
%8
GROUP
2= —T——F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
W - WS NERE Property, plant and equipment:
—BET4) - BERIERE — contracted, but not provided for 10,208 1,782
RERPYFRZZETRR - Construction works relating to
properties under development:
—BETH - ERIERE — confracted, but not provided for 1,300,361 204,112
—BERE - BRFTA — authorised, but not contracted for 248,493 300,000
1,548,854 504,112
RWERR  ARRITEERAE(Z The Company had no significant commitments at the end of the
T—_F: &) reporting period [2012: Nil|.
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39. HREE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REEHRK - %Wﬁﬂ&&i‘% MIEH B At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
ZHARBENT in the financial statements were as follows:
&5 NG|
GROUP COMPANY
—E-=F ZZT——F =ZEB-=F ZE——F
2013 2012 2013 2012

FET FEr FET FErT
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000

LTSI Guarantees given fo financial
A TALTHEE  institufions in connection with
—REEER general credit facilities
MiaT &R ganted fo:
—HEBAF — subsidiaries - — 1,500,490 1,286,376
——[#&RNE - an associate 51,280 9,800 51,280 9,800

HENRESE Guarantees in respect
A TAL of performance bonds
1EH 2 1R - granted to:
iG] — subsidiaries 342,818 251,598 342,818 251,598
——[IERE - an associate 35,229 42,341 35,229 42,341

429,327 303,739 1,929,817 1,590,115
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40. BEALRS

BRIEBENZEMBERREMM T - K
SERNFRREEALFL MIRS

(a)

(6]

BEEA T+ 2R BERF

RBERR - AREEBZNF
Y A LN R )
F19Kk24 - RIBEBK K&
Eln gt AL /N e
REEERME T 2 ERENH
BRARMFE 39 ©

FEEFEETENS MW
7\_

R HE B = A
DARSCHE S {1 2 B P 2 i
ERERER

ENTEEEEAR 2 R AR

EHEEMLHERRYBER
i3S -

Annual Report 2012/2013

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with related parties during the year:

(a)  Outstanding balance with related parties

Defails of the Group's balances with its associates as at the end
of the reporting period are included in notes 19 and 24 to the
financial statements. Guarantees given by the Group fo financial
instifutions in connection with general credit facilities granted to ifs
associates af the end of the reporting period are included in note
39 to the financial statements.

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group
&=
GROUP
—E-=F —EZ——fF
2013 2012
FET AT
HK$000 HK$'000
Short term employee benefits 60,242 50,928
Equity-sefiled share optfion expense 107 424
Postemployment benefits 168 144

Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 60,517 51,496

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 fo

the financial statements.



40. BEALRS(E)

47.

() HFEEMZBEATEIES
RESERTEZAMZS
(B3 19) :

(1) REE-T—-—=-F=A
“+-BLFE FTEE
LETRAADAZHEBER
ARAIREB)ERA
D HRETIZ R T
1249 66,400,00038 7T ©

2) RNBE-T—=%=A7
=T—BIEFE - RERE
IREEFAEFERAFEE
XERE 7RI A 842,000
7 7T & 1,020,000 7T(=

— 5 : 842,000 Tk
720,000 7T) °

%F TR 1%

d #H=E-—Z-—=F=ZA=+—HL
FE - AEEREIEEEAS
REEORKEKE HEER
Bl ZEME(ZT——F -
—IEWE) KREA7,282000
7B L(ZF — Z F : 340,000
T0) o ZEMERBEORE TR
SEEMEBERFHERNE
HHE -

BREAA LS () (c)2) R |d) B8 B E
HRSTHEK ETRAE 1IARMAE
HEER S o

HE—RNE AR 2B ER

R-T——"FXA=+tRH A&%EL
EENENRERAR(REERER

80% 1k < Hi B8 R B]) 2 5% BHE T 1A
BARAE— %%% R1E/R68,000
BT - RERNEE B IHERERER
FBIHEERABZZFEA813,000%
TURAR S BR BRI
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

41.

fc)

(d)

Other transactions with TTCL and TBC, associates of the

Group (note 19):

(1)

(2)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, TBC
subcontracted engineering and mechanical works of
approximately HK$66.4 million to Tysan Engineering (H.K.)
Company limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, TBC and
TTCL paid management fees of HK$842,000
and HK$1,020,000 (2012: HK$842,000 and

HK$720,000) fo the Group, respectively.

These transactions were entered into by the Group and its

associates in accordance with the terms of the respective

agreements.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group sold
properties (2012: a property) held for sale fo ifs key management

personnel and their close family members for a consideration of
HK$7,282,000 (2012: HK$340,000). These properties were

sold according fo prices and conditions similar fo those offered to

other non-related customers of the Group.

The related party fransactions in respect of items (c)(1), (c)(2) and (d)

above also constitute connected fransactions as defined in Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 30 June 2012, the Group disposed of its 5% equity interest
in Jefroyal Limited, a then 80%-owned subsidiary, to a direcfor of

Jefroyal Limited at a consideration of HK$68,000. The difference of

approximately HK$813,000 between the consideration and the non-

controlling interest’s share of assets and liabilities af the date of disposal

was debited

fo the Group's retained profits.
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42.

RERERBRMETE

FEHREERE

RZZ—ZF+—A+AHAB ' ARAA
—BE2ENE A AR E R E 0%’
wm/MBAR ) ZERBBRER AR
REWMBAR LEERBEKEEHER
BB AR -+ (b)Albright Investment
limited R ELKIBARALKIZREBR AR
Uk EBEEEHEXRAERAR
(c)lronwood Pacific Limited & E Fff B 2
A8 ®%EEBR A F " (dFfederated
Resources Limited & X Fff 8 22 &) 4= F X
BRARNE EBREEASFHERE
&2 B MW 28 K (e)Beneficial Enferprises
limited R EMIB AR ERITBERAT
EEMEERE(LE)ERARIKBLEE
RARADA(FEERESOLER
ZHBRARSBZHERERFS
ANTEFDIIVUEEWE NWER S
K E 300,000,000 LR E FWEE
KR 60% i < M B A 8] 2 40% %
BEBRRERZEN R Z - BRE
150,000,000 thEE—T——F
ZRA=+—BLEFEIN - EARHK
BEBRTAR_ZT——F=A=+—H
ZEHMENFIE - B WET & REMKK
B mMRERBE-Z—Z-F=A
=T —RIEFEREEA
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42. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

Major non-cash fransaction

On 15 November 2010, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered info a sale and purchase agreement with non-controlling equity
holders (the "Vendors"] of each of then 60%-owned subsidiaries,
(a) China Garden International Limited and its subsidiary, Shanghai
China Garden Infernational Real Estate Development & Management
Company Limited, (b) Allbright Investment Limited and its subsidiaries,
Red Shine Investment Limited and Shanghai Duncan Property Consulting
Company Limited, (c] Ironwood Pacific limited and its subsidiary,
Hiat Investment Limited, (d] Federated Resources Limited and its
subsidiaries, Carriway limited and Shanghai Changning Duncan
Property Development Company limited, and [e) Beneficial Enterprises
Limited and its subsidiaries, Fund House Llimited, Duncan Property
Management (Shanghai] Company Limited and Bestful Consultants
Limited, (collectively known as “Then 60%owned Subsidiaries”) to
acquire from the Vendors 40% equity inferest in and the rights and
benefits in the shareholders’ loans to the Then é0%owned Subsidiaries
for the total cash consideration of HK$300,000,000. During the year
ended 31 March 2011, tofal consideration of HK$ 150,000,000 was
paid. The remaining balance of the consideration of the transaction was
included in other payables, deposits received and receipt in advance
as af 31 March 2011 and the consideration was fully paid during the
year ended 31 March 2012.



43. BERIED 2ERMTA 43.

RBEHR  EReRTAZREEW
o

£ZH
BENRZRR Amounts due from associates
Mz 19) (note 19)

(
BADNAZER(HEE19)  Loans to associates nofe 19)
BOTFEABRZRE  Invesiments ot fair value
through profit or loss

it Trade receivables

Hth IR Other receivables
(TEEBMIA Derivative financial instruments
THER Time deposits

XRHRE Restricted cash
RERFTER Cosh and bank balances

o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

GROUP

Financial assets

“F-=F —F-Cf

2013 2012

ROTE BATE

T ABRZ st AR Z

TREE TREE

-BFEE ~FEEE

Financiol Financial

assefs at fair assets at foir

EHR volue through B#& valve through

JEFIE  profitor YWHE  politor
loans and ~ loss - held @t loansand  loss- held a5t
receivables  for frading Total  receivables  for trading Total

TET T FET FET FET PET
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$ 000

2,115 = 2,115 1,745 - 1,745
8,150 = 8,150 8,150 - 8,150
- 272373 272373 - 3,282 3,282
735,062 - 735062 430,072 - 430,072
18,601 - 18,601 21,452 - 21,452
= = = - 110 110
529,582 - 529,582 208,248 — 208,248
60,207 = 60,207 79,621 - 79,621
488,870 - 488870 275816 - 25816

1,842,587 272,373 2,114,960 1,025,104 3,392 1,028,496
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43. BRERES2EMIAE) 43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
RBEHR  SEERTAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
T: (& as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Cont'd)

B (") GROUP (Cont'd)
= Financial liabilities
—E-=F& -
2013 2012
BOYE BATE
it ABEZ sTABREZ
TRAE TREE
-#EEE ~BEEE
Z#%  Financial &S Finncial
BASIE2  liabilities of BAGIERZ  liabiliies of
ERMEE  fairvalue eREE  fairvalue
Financial through Financial through
licbiliies ot~ profit or liobilties o profit or
amortised ~loss - held @3t omottised  loss - held @5t
cost  for trading Total cost  for frading Total

FiEr FiEr T TiET TET TiET
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$0OO  HK$O00  HKS000

[EITE B8R Trade payables 301,256 — 301,256 249480 — 249480
EthETIR Other payables 6,188 - 6,188 4,555 = 4,555
fTHEERTA Derivative financial instruments - 8,205 8,205 = 11,146 11,146
MRRITEE Inferestbeoring bank borowings 835,828 - 835828 598,278 - 598278
RE—BHEAFZEZ  loan fom an associate 24,560 - 24,560 24,560 = 24,560

1,167,832 8,205 1,176,037 876,873 11,146 888,019
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43. RERES2ERMIA(E) 43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
RI|EHR SEERTAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
T: (&) as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Cont'd)
ATl COMPANY
TREE Financial assets
=E—_=F =FT_—F
2013 2012
XK Bk
WU IR JENUT IR
Loans and loans and

receivables  receivables
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000

RITHETT Bank balances 257 230
SRas Financial liabilities

—¥-=f ZF-CF

2013 2012

HERZ B8R 2

A= CRAE

Financial Financial

liabilities ot liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000

KB AR ZFIBE(KIFE18) Amounts due to subsidiaries (nofe 18] 222,445 101,610
RN E SRR (P EE 29) Trade payables (note 29) 897 848
Hit N RIR Other payables 109 =

223,451 102,458
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44.

DNHESRERE

AEBRANTERRBET R KES
BMIAZRYE:

F1E:

5208

£30R

i8S AN A EHE BT
B2 RERBREHEND
i

DG ATEEEEY
EZ2HARBEIEELR
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44. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for defermining and disclosing

the fair values of financial instruments:

level 1:

level 2:

level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly, but where prices have not been determined in
an active market, financial assets with fair value based on
broker quotes, investments in private equity funds with fair
values obtained via fund managers and assefs that are
valued using the Group's model whereby the majority of
assumptions are market observation

fair values measured based on valuation fechniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)
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44. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Cont'd)

Assets measured at fair valve as at 31 March 2013 and 2012:

GROUP
“E-cF —E-F
2013 2012
E1E FE EIE &t F1E FIE FIE &t
Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Tofal level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
Fér Fér Fér Fér Er  TEr TET TET
S0 HEO HSom A0 HSO HSO0 RS0 HSO
3838 26853 - M 3282 = = 3,282
- - - - = 110 = 110
3838 26853 - M 3282 110 = 3,392
Liabilities measured at fair valve as at 31 March 2013 and 2012:
GROUP
ZE-=F 2
2013 012
F1E FE FIE @t F1E FIE E3E &
Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total level 1 level 2 level 3 Tofal
FEr FEr i FEr FET T FET T
H$00 s oo 00 3000 000 HS00 Ko
- 8205 - 8205 = 11,146 = 11146

The Company did not have any financial insfruments measured at fair

value as at 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).

During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements
between level 1 and level 2 and no fransfers into or out of level 3

(2012: Nil).

£% 2012/2013 157



.'H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

158

5. BEEREREBERBER

AEEZFECRTIABERS IR
B ERER  BEEZRTREM
YR - RAFEFABGZZERE
TEEBTA  BNESRREEBE
NRBEUARMSRITEER - ZFSRT
B2 BRI KRB BN HKE -
HZEFLR AR RRRNERE
ZERRZBREINIT - EREER
RERZERRE - ERER LA
REUEE I

=EmRE

AEEZEESREESRE MIRITA
7 EHETARERE ST R EM
FEIHIR

AREREER 5 2 RITHAGBERE
ERMER T 2R EER - BURTT
BERERERZEERRTA

AEBEERRTIEREEEKES
ERREMERE - EREFEER
BHERESER  MAKEEY 2R
RRRYAEA - AEEYBEERMR
BESTZER - AESZERD HE
ZERGHFREP - ARAKEEE
RERKE SRR EMRETIE (5
ERe < ELEBENMBRRME
24 K25 -

Annual Report 2012/2013

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2013 —Z2—=#=A=+—H

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, time deposifs, trade and other receivables, investments af
fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial instruments, frade
and other payables and interestbearing bank borrowings. Defails
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective nofes fo
these financial statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how fo mitigate these risks are sef out
below. Management manages and monifors these exposures fo ensure
that appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective

manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and bank balances,
fime deposits and frade and other receivables.

The credif risk on bank balances and time deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned by
infernational creditrafing agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily aftributable to its frade and other
receivables. Management monitors each individual trade debt on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure fo bad debts is not
significant. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with the exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
cusfomers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
fo credit risk arising from frade and other receivables are disclosed in
nofes 24 and 25 fo the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly afiributable
fo its interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings af variable rates
expose the Group to interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
have an interest rafe hedging policy. However, management monitors
the Group's interest rafe exposure and considers entering info inferest
rate swaps fo reduce its exposure fo inferest rate fluctuations should the
need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo a reasonably
possible change in interest rafes, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floafing rafe
borrowings) and the Group's equity (before any impact on tax).

&8 GROUP
BRBL A& A
2/ (i)
MNELH Increase/
Increase (decrease) BRRD ¥
in interest in profit Decrease
rafe  before tax in equity*
FEx FET
HK$ 000 HK$000
“E-=F 2013
100 &%
RITER Bank loans 100 basis (8,377) -
points
100 &%
fTEERMIA Derivative financial 100 basis 2,000 —
insfruments points

F£4% 2012/2013
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

FIF R (&) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
£B(#Z) GROUP (Cont'd)
BRELATE R
#m,/ (i)
FlZE L5 Increase/
Increase (decrease] R *
in inferest in profit Decrease
rate before tax in equity™
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
—E——F 2012
100 E 2,
FITER Bank loans 100 boasis (5,990 —
points
TO00 &2,
fTHESBIA Derivative financial 100 basis 2,000 —
instruments points
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*

Excluding refained profits

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of ifs transactions seffled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
the current year, all of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the
need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity af the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Euro and
Japanese Yen exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).
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Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

GROUP

2013

I Hong Kong dollar weakens
against Euro

I Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against Euro

2012

If Hong Kong dollar weakens
against Euro

I Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against Euro

If Hong Kong dollar weakens
against Japanese Yen

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against Japanese Yen

*

Increase in
exchange
rate

%

%

Exc|uding refained profifs

31 March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

45. BBEBEEBFERBEK(E) 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)

BB AR

2,/ CH2) REZRIE N
Increase/  / GEA)*
(decrease)  Increase/
in profit (decrease)
before tax in equity*
T F/ET
HK$ 000 HK$000
852 —

(852) it

[136) m

136 =

(@28) i

Q28 -

F£4% 2012/2013
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is fo mainfain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

GROUP
“B-=F
2013
128R A 1258 SENLE
REREE Less than o5 Over @it
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total
FEx TEx TEx TEx FEn
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
- 301,256 - - 301,256
- 6,188 - - 6,188
- - 8,205 - 8,205
27,727 82,293 654,779 72,939 837,738
24,560 - - - 24,560
51,280 - - - 51,280
35,229 - - - 35,229
138,796 389,737 662,984 72,939 1,264,456




o
ERgMBERARAD

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

45. BBEBEEBFERBEK(E) 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)

mEBETEE(E) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
KE(E) GROUP (Cont'd)
E-CF
2012
12f8ALAA 1256 SENE
REREE Less than T105 Over @5t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

TET TEL &L TET THEL
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

ENESEN Trade payables - 249,480 = - 249,480
Hft MR Other payables = 4,555 = = 4,555
TEERMIA Derivative financial
instruments = 140 11,006 = 11,146
HERTHRE* Inferest-bearing bank
borrowings* 28,352 203,418 273,852 93,343 598,965
RE—ABERT L ER Loan from an associate 24,560 = = = 24,560
FEBHER—BEERE  Cuorontees given fo financial
BH-REEERM insfifufions in connection
BT iR with general credit facilities
granted fo an associate 9,800 = = = 9,800
SEROREZM—HWERT  Guarontees in respect of
fEi 2 iR performance bonds
granted fo an associate 42341 = = = 42,341

105,053 457,593 284,858 93,343 940,847

* RZE—ZFR-_ZE——-F=H * Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are bank loans of
=t+—HB WERTEEREHE HK$27,727,000 and HK$28,352,000 as at 31 March 2013 and
RERKEREXE TERAEGHS 2012, respectively, which contain a repayment on demand clause
ENEEEREREERZBITER giving the lender the unconditional right fo call the loan at any time and
27,727 0007 7t & 28,352,000 7T therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these amounts are
At - gt HRB BRI E - ZEe classified as on demand.

BENBRRBRERREE -
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5. BMIREREEBERBK(E)

MEELTERE ()

BEHA LR BRERE - HESFE
ERERTERRENREEERTERN
REARZEES ARFR/ZERT
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RUBRRELAER B2 HBERR - T&E
ETENRHLER  TEENEHRAK
BBE—MERRHER - RRFITERLZ
G R-E-—=F=A=+—H 3#F
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors
do not believe that the bank loans will be called in ifs enfirety within
12 months, and they consider that the bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as set ouf in the respective
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial
position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial statements;
the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of
default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of bank loans, the
maturity terms at 31 March 2013 are HK$93,091,000 (2012:
HK$224,217,000) payable less than 12 months; HK$671,708,000
(2012: HK$281,405,000] payable in one fo five years, inclusive;
HK$72,939,000 (2012: HK$93,343,000) payable over five years.

2F COMPANY
—E-=F
2013
128 R A 1258 SENLE
REREE Less than o5 Over @t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total
TEx TEx TEx FEx FEn
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
RHBLRZHE Amounts due fo subsidiaries 222,445 - - - 222,445
EREHER Trade payables - 897 - - 897
EfEATE Other payables - 109 - - 109
AHBRERNTAL Guaranees given fo
—RIEEEHRM financial insfitutions
BT in connection with
general credit
facilities granted fo:
—~HBAF - subsidiaries 1,500,490 - - - 1,500,490
——EHE AT - an associate 51,280 - - - 51,280
REAOREEAMATAL  Guarantees in respect
fEH 2R - of performance
bonds granted fo:
BT - subsidiaries 342,818 - - - 342,818
=N - an associate 35,229 - - - 35,229
2,152,262 1,006 - - 2,153,268

Annual Report 2012/2013
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (Contd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

COMPANY (Cont'd)

31 March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

3
2012
12/8ANAA 1256 SENE
RESER Less than o5 Over @t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Tolal
TET TEL &L TET THEL
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
101,610 - - - 101,610
- 848 - - 848
1,286,376 - - - 1,286,376
9,800 - - - 9,800
251,598 - - - 251,598
42,341 - - - 42,34
1,691,725 848 - - 1,692,573

Fair valves of financial assets and financial liabilities

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assefs

and financial liabilities reported in the statements of financial position

approximate fo their respective fair values.

F£4% 2012/2013
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed fo equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments classified as trading

investments (note 20) as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity to every 10% decrease
in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other variables held
consfant and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period.

BRBLAT
REZIREE BAED
Carrying Decrease  fEmHD *
amount in profit Decrease
of investments  before tax in equity*
THET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-=F 2013
mAFEFARRZ Listed equity investments af fair
EhkHmERE value through profit or loss 3,838 384 —
—TC—F 2012
BRAFEFARRZ Listed equity investments at fair
FHRHERE value through profit or loss 3,282 328 —

o TERREEN
BEAEHE

AEEEAETEZEIEAGRERAS
BRENEFECEEB RAEER
BFEREERERAFERBILHA
fERREE -

AEERBEEMRA EHERHER
BEEIWIEL A - BB IARELRE
B AEEYEAEINTREZR
B RERRZERKEITHRG - B
BHE_T—=F#=-A=+—-HK=ZE
——F=ZA=+—HLtFER " E@E
AEBZBE  BURKIEF U EELE
BB
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*

Excluding refained profits
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are fo
safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders” value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
fo it in light of changes in economic condifions. To maintain or adjust
the capital sfructure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
fo shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capifal during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31
March 2012.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)

Capital management (Cont'd)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing rafio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio not more than 50%. Net debt includes trade
payables, other payables, derivative financial instruments, inferest-
bearing bank borrowings and a loan from an associate less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital includes tofal equity of the Group. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

AABHEWT

FEfTE Z R
HitENRIR
TEEMIA
P RRITEE

RE—HBERRIZER

Trade payables

Other payables

Derivative financial instruments
Interestbearing bank borrowings
Loan from an associate

B EETER less: Time deposits
XRFIRE Restricted cash
BE RIRITHET Cash and bank balances
BEFH Net debt
s Total equity
ERBREHER Gearing ratio

—B-=ZF ZE—_F

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
(#EE5))

(Restated)

301,256 249 480
6,188 4,555
8,205 11,146

835,828 598,278
24,560 24,560
(529,582) (208,248
(60,207)  [79,621)
(488,870) (275,814

97,378 324,334

2,369,969 2,037,147

4% 16%
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46.

47.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 fo the financial statements, due fo the
adoption of revised HKFRSs during the current year, the accounting
freatment and presentation of certain items and balances in the financial
stafements have been revised to comply with the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have been made, cerfain
comparafive amounts have been resfated o conform with the current
year's accounting freatment, and a third stafement of financial position
as af 1 April 2011 has been presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 19 June 2013.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

B

Location

PR ST

Lhelm

FIEPREE 1335
RREE

The Waterfront

133 Guangfu Road West,
Putuo District,

Shanghai, PRC

BRI

APl

B SRR EIRM B O m Al
FURE

The Riverside

South side of the junction
of Tai Er Zhuang Road and
Qiongzhou Road,

Hexi District,

Tianjin, PRC

F ¥ Y ¥ — ¥ F SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

BHEME
Type of
development

(E=c
Residential

=
Residential

ERgMBERARAD

B4
RREEE
Approximate
gross floor
area
(FF2K)
(sq.m)

147,000

75,000

A
Ptz
Group’s
interest

100%

Q0%

F£4% 2012/2013
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T %Y ¥ — B K SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

RS
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

BRME
W E Type of
Location development
PERELEST e/ Ak
EhEE AL Residential /
Huanghe Nan Avenue, Commercial

Huanggu District,
Shenyang City,

Liaoning Province, PRC

REME
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
bk

Location

hE T

RERTILHE

BEMBIOF - O

ZFEAE

China Garden,

Nos. 1 -6, Lane 39 Ronghuaxi Road,
Gubei New Area, Changning District,
Shanghai, PRC

hE LT

RERITER

2222 F 55 RBHAE

AR EEEEA -

BRE 21 J2 25 {EE iz

1 residential units of Block A,
Whole of Block B and 25 car parks,
Aidu Building, No. 55 lane 2222,
Honggiao Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, PRC
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B4

BRREEE

Approximate

WAERE  gross floor
Site areas area
(FHAK) (FHK)
(sg.m/ (sq.m/

41,209 165,000

BERR
Existing use
F=
Residential

=2
Residential

FEH

ES
Group's PR ER
interest Stage

Q7% IREER
Construction
commenced

AHH

Type of lease

=3t

long term

=3t

long term
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Mr. David CHIEN

Miss Jennifer KWOK

Mr. CHIU Chin Hung

Mr. [AU Kin Fai

Mr. Harvey Jackel CHEUNG
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Mr. Francis CHEUNG

Mr. FAN Chor Ho

M. LI Kit Chee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Francis CHEUNG (Chairman)
Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. U Kit Chee

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Miss MO Wai Ling

COMPANY SECRETARY

Miss WONG Suk Han, Kitty
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
Reed Smith Richards Butler
Szefo & Yeung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China [Hong Kong) Limited

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Wing Hang Bank, Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilion HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

20th Floor One lsland South
No. 2 Heung Yip Road
Wong Chuk Hang

Hong Kong

BRANCH REGISTRARS IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
26th Floor Tesbury Centre
28 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

HKSE STOCK CODE

687

WEBSITE

www.tysan.com
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